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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of TMF Business Services Limited (Formerly Tata Motors Finance Limitéd}
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Cpinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of TMF Business Services Limited
(formerly Tata Motors Finance Limited) (hereinafter referred as "the Company”), which comprise
the balance sheet as at 31 March 20324, the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehengive income), the cash flow statement and the statement of changesin equity forthe year
ended on that date and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
sccounting policies and other explanatory Infarmation.

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the expianations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Acf, 2013
{hereinafier referred as “the Act”) in the manner so required and give & rue and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended (hereinafter referred a3 "Ind
AS™ and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affalrs (financial
position) of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its loss {financial performance inciuding other
comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (hereinafter referrad as
“SA57} specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the sudit of the financiel statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issuad by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of india together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financia! statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 27 to the Statement, which describes that current year figures are not
comparable with previous year due to transfer NBFC business of the Company.
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Information other than the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

The Company’s Managementand Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the Board's report and managerment discussion and
analysis included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements dees not cover the other informaticn and we do not SADTESS
any form of assurance conciusion thereon

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, cur responsibility is to read the other
infarmation identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit,
or ctherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Director's responsibilities for the financial statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a
trie and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Ind AS, This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accourting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial contrals, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud Or error,

In preparing the financial statements, Company's Management and Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as = going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either Intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
afternative but ta do sg,

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to abtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material rmisstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an suditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes
that an audit conducted in aceordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or arror and are considered material if, individuatly or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statemnents, ’
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and rmaintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We aisol

A, ldentify and assass the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit proceduras respoensive to those risks, and obtain audit
avidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from errer,
35 fraud may involve coliusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, orthe override
of internal controt.

B Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also rasponsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has sdequate internal
financia! controls system in place and the operating effectivenass of such controls.

C. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting nolicies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates shd related disclosures made by management.

D. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the sudit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as & going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are reguired to draw attention in
our auditor's repert to the related disclosures in the financial statements o, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our suditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue asa going concern.

£. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underiying transactions and
events In a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financiat statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the sconomic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in 6) planning the scope of ocur audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (in)
to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provida those charged with governance with 2 statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical reguirements regarding independence, and 1o communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters comnunicated with thosa charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe thase matters in our auditor's report uniess law or
reguiation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Other Matter

The financial statements include figures for the previous year ended 31 March 2023 which were
audited jointly by us along with other joint auditor and expressed an unmedified audit opinion
thereon vide their report dated 28 Aprii 2023,

Cur opinion is not modified in respect of this other matrer,
Report on other legal and regulatery requirements

1 Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Crder”), issued by the central
government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A", 5 statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and &4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by section 143 {3) of the Act and based on our audit, we report that

al  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and beliel were necessary for the purposes of our sudit;

b} inouropinion, proper books of account as reguired by law have been kept by the Company so
- far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢} The balance sheeat, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income),
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d) tn our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Ruies, 2074;

el On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as an 31 Merch 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2024 from being appointed as a director in termis of section 164 (2) of the Act;

f)  With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial contrels over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
"Annexure B"; our report expresses an unmodified epinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls ovar financial reporting;

g)  Inour opinion and to the best of our infoermation and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has not paid managerial remunerstion during the vear. Accordingly,
reporting on the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, is not applicable; and
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M) With respect to the other matters to be included in the auditor's reportin accordance with rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our epinion and to the best of cur
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2024 on its
financial position in its financial statements - refer note 30 to the financial statemeants.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any materisl foresesable losses as a1 31 March 2024,

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024.

iv. Reporting on rule 11{el:

{(a) The Management has represanted that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
stated in note no. 400), no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
ar share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any othar person(s) or entity(ies], inciuding foreign entities {“Intermediaries"), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the ln%ermediary
shall, directly or indirectly iend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the Company {*Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behali of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

() The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
stated in note no. 40(i}, no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly arindirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified In any manner whatsoever by or on
bahalf of the Funding Party {“Uitimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
secyrity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(¢} Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the drcumstances, nothing has come 1o our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause {i) and (i) of rule T¥{e), as
provided under (a) and (b} above, contain any material misstatement.

v, During the previcus vear, the company has not declared/paid dividend. Accordingly,
reporting under section 123 of the Act is not applicable,
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vi. Based on ourexamination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting

' software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail

(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the vear for all relevant

transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not
come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with,

For Sharp & Tannan Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration no. 109983W
Digitally signed by

Digitally signed
Pramod A

Ramesh Rameshshise
Date: 3024.04.29

Bhise 214501 +05'30°
CA Pramuod Bhise
Partner
Membership no{F} 047751
Pune, 29 Aprit 2024 UDIN: 24047751BKAAGNS4L42
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Annexure A to the independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading, “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Reguirements” of our repori on even date)

Tothe best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company
and the baoks of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state
that:

5 {a) {A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, inciuding
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(8) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets,

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management
at regular intervals based on the programme of verification in a phased manner which
in our opinicn is reasonable. No material discrepancies were noticed during such
physical verification conducted by the Company during the year.

(<) As on balance sheet date , the Compsny does not have any immovable properties.
Accardingly, reporting under paragraph 3(){(¢) of the Qrder is not applicable.

(d} The Company has neither revajuad its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right
of Use assets) nor intangible assets during the year, Accordingly, reporting under
paragraph 3(i)d) of the Order is not appiicable.

(e} No proceedings have been initiated or are pending sgsinst the company for holding
any benami praperty under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition} Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3{i)e) of
the Order is not applicable.

Giy {a) The Company does not hold any inventory, Accordingly, reporting under paragraph
(i a) of the Order is not applicable.

{b) During the year and post transfer of NBFC business, the Company has not been
sanctioned working capitai limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from
banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Accardingly,
reporting under paragraph 3(i)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(i} The Company has not made any investments in, provided any security of granted any
secured loans or secured or unsecured sdvances in the nature of loans, to companies,
firrns, limited iability partnerships or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, the
reporting under paragraph 3{iide, 3(ilb, 3{iie, 3(iid, 3ilde and Z(lit)f is not applicable.

{iv} The Company has not granted any loans or made investments or provided any guarantees
or security to the parties covered under provisions of sections 185 and 186. Accordingly,
the reporting under paragraph 3(iv} is not applicabie.

(v) The Company has not accepted deposits or deemed deposits to which the directives
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 10 76 of the Act, and
the rules framed there under, are applicable. Accordingly, reporting under para 3{viis not

applicable. ,@nnan%%
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{vi)  The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under
section 48(T) of the Act, for the business activities cartled out by the Companv.
Accardingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (Vi) of the Crder is not applicable.

{(vii} Inrespect of statutory dues:

{a)

{t)

The Company is regular in deposit‘ing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and any other statutory dues, as
applicable, to the appropriste authorities. Based on the verification carried out by us
on test basis, there are no arrears of statutory dues outstanding as on the last day of
the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date, they
became pavable.

There are no disputed dues of income tax, sales tax, G5T, value added taxes and any
other statutory dues, as applicable as at 31st March 2024, which have not been
deposited.

(viii} The Company has not surrendered or disciosed any transactions, previcusly unrecorded
as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income tax act, 1967
as income during the year. Accordingly, reporting under para 3(viil) is ot applicable.

(ix)  {a)

{b)

(<)

(d)

{e)

(1}

{0 (a)

(b}

(COINE)]

{b

The Company has not defauited in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender. Accordingly, reporting under para 3{jx){a)
is not applicahte.

The Company has not been declared as wilful defauiter by any bank or financial
institution or other lencer. Accordingly, reporting under para 3(ix}b) is not appiicable.

The Company has not availed term loans during the vear. Accordingly, reporting under
para 3(ix){c} iz not applicable.

As on halance sheet date the Company hes Inter-Corporate Deposits (ICDs) from
related party repayable on demand hence classified as short-term funds. In addition,
the Company has a sanctioned facility from its Parent Company. In view of the above,
funds raised on short term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes,

The Company does hot have subsidiary, associate, or joint venture. Accordingly,
reporting on paragraph 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have subsidiary, associste, or joint venture. Accordingly,
reporting on paragraph 3({f) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initlal public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, reporting on para 3(x}a) is rot
applicable,

The Company has not made any preferantial aliotrment or private placement of shares
or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible} during the year.
Accordingly, reporting on para 3(xXb) s not applicable.

No fraud by the Company or any materis! fraud on the Company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act
has beenfiled by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies

{Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Governments i,
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{xii)

{xiii)

(xiv)

{(xv)

{xvi}

{xvii)

(¢} No whistle blower complaints received by the company during 1he year,

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, reporting on para 3(xii} of the order is
not applicable.

Ail transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the
Act, wherever applicable, and the details have been disciosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable IND AS.

{a) During the year, the Company has demerged Non-Banking Finance related business
{refer note 27). Considering the above, the company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) Reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under the audit were considered by us.

The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act,
20132 are not applicable to the company. Accordingly, reporting on para 3{xv} of the order
is not appiicable,

{a) During the year, the Company has voluntarily syrrendered its Certificate of
Registration. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

(b} The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Heusing Finance
activities after voluntary surrender of Certificate of Registration (CoR).

(c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of india. Accordingly, reporting on para 3(xvidc) of the
order is not applicable,

{d) The Group has more than one CIC as part of the group. The Group has four CICs which
are registered with the Reserve Bank of india.

The company has not incurred cash losses In the current financlal year and in the
immediately preceding financial vear.

{xvii) During the year, other joint auditor resigned post demerger of NBFC business. There were

{xix}

no issues, objections or concerns raised by them. The resignation was on account of non-
requirement of joint audit.

On the basis of the financial ratios, sgeing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directoers and managément plans and based on
our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report that compary is nol capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as te the future visbility of the
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee notr any assurance that all Habilities fatling
due within & period of ong year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
company as and when they fall due.
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(xx). {8} There is no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other
than ongoing projects required a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedute Vil to the
companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub section (5) of section 135 of
the Act. Accordingly, reporting on para 3{xx)(a) of the order is not applicable.

(b} Thereisno unspent amount towards Corporate Sccial Responsibility (CSR) in respect
of engoing projects requiring a transfer to a spacial account in compliance with sub-
section (6) of section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting on pare 3(xx)h) of the
order is not applicable,

{xxi} The Company does not have subsidiary, associate or joint venture hence is not reguired to
prepare consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, reporting on paragraph 3{xxi} of
the Crder is not applicable.

For Sharp & Tannan Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm’'s Registration no. 109983W
Digitally signed by

Pramod owitally signed
by Pramad

Ramesh rameshBhise
. Date: 2024.04.29
Bhise 21:46:54 +05'30°
CA Pramod Bhise
Partrer
Membership no{F) 047751

Pure, 29 April 2024 UDIN: 2404775 1BKAAGNE4E?
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report
Referred to in paragraph 2 (F) under the heading, "Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our repcrf on even date:
Report on the Internal Financial Controls
[under Clause {i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)]

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of TMF Business Services
Limited(formerly Tata Motors Finance Limited)(hereinafter referred as “the Company”) as of 31
March 2024 in conjunction with cur audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Coempany has, in all material respects, an adegquate internal financial contrels system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at 31 March 2024, based on the internal financial control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated In the Guidance
Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting {hereinafier referred as “tha
auidance note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {hereinafter referred as
“GCAL.

Managements and Board of Directors responsibility for internal financial controls

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financis! reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
guidance nole. These responsibilities include the design, Implementation and maintenance of
adeguate internal financial controls that were operating effectively faor ensuring the orderly and
sfficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timealy preparation of reliable financiat information, as required under
the Act,

Auditor's responsibility

Cur responsibility is 1o express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the guidance note and the
Standards on Auditing issued by ICAl and deemaed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial contrels over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and thelr operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls ovar financial reporting, assessing the risk that 2 material weakness exigts,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control besed on the
assessed rigsk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, inciuding the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidenre we have obtained is sufficient and sppropriate to provide & basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's Internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable agsurance regarding the refiability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in zccordance with generally accepted accounting principles, A
Company's internal financial control over financial reporting inciudes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reascnable detail, accurately and fairiv reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necaessary to permit préparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
Company are being made only in accordance with suthorizations of managemeant and directors of
the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have 2 material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent limitations of internal financial contrals over financial reporting

Because of the inherent imitations of interna financial controls over financial reporting, inciuding
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detacted, Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject 1o the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the palicies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Sharp & Tannan Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registraticn no. 109983W
Digitally sighed by

Pl’amod  Digitally signed

by Pramod
Ramesh Rameshshise
BRiSE . zrasasicess
CA Pramod Bhise
Partner
Membership noF) 047751
Pune, 28 Aprit 2024 UDIN: 24047751BKAAQNSEAL62

TMFBSL - 31 Mar. 2024 Page 12 of 12



TMF Business Services Limited [FORMERLY XNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED} {CIN - U45200MH2983PLEDS0444)
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

(X in kakhs)
Farticatars Notes As at March 31 As 3t Mareh 31
2024 2023
} ASSETS
1 Mon-current assets
{a) Property, plant and equipment 5 127,68.21 200,33.12
(b} intangible assets & . 2,24.14
(¢} Financial assets:
{i}  investments 7 - 1114,69.25
{l} Lloans -3 - £292,91.41
{iit Bank balances 9 - 53,18.77
(iv} Otherfinancial assets 10 - 126,65.86
{d} Deferred tax agsets [net) 14 5,28.28 219,54.00
{2} Non-Current tax assets {net) 14 131,23.26 205,33.70
{f) Other non current assets 12 14,08.87 19,66.94
278,28.72 8234,58.23
2 Current assets
{a) Financial assets:
fi}  investments 7 - 326,08.08
{if} Loans & - 17463,41.81
{1ii} Trade receivables £3 5,37.09 29,87.01
{iv) Cash and cash equivaients i1 3,37.60 3227,01.92
{v)] Bankbalances g 98,00 2,23.14
{vij Otherfinancial assets Ftry 4,42.29 763,82.81
{b} Other current assets 12 18,09.54 113,18.57
35,25.52 21936,71.34
3 Assets held for sale - 170,63.56
Total assets 313,54%4 30341,93.13
1 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a} Equity share capizal 15 37,2271 876,85.57
{b} Instruments entirely equity in nature 16A - 1348,00.00
{c) Other equity {9,51.62} 2102,45.97
27,31.08 4430,11.94
Liabilities
1 Non-current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities:
(i}  Berrowings 17 - 11955,38.88
(i} Lease Liabllities - 68,87.40
{iii}  Qther financial liabilities 18 3,26.38 34,24.36
[b} Provisions bi-] 231 7,680.09
5,28.49 12135,50.73
2 Current liabitities
{a} Financial liabilities:
i}  Borrowlngs 17 269,00.00 12693,65.40
i} Lease liabilities . 13,62.24
(i} Trade payables 1
{1} Total putstanding dues of micro, small and medium enterprises 11.3% 10,67.67
{2) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than above 1,94.53 206,45.31
(v} Other financial liabilities 18 5,42.72 786,92.96
{b) Provisions 1% - 171.74
{¢} Currant tax liabilities (net) 3.02 3.02
{d) Other current lizbilities 20 3,43.04 63,42.12
280,94.66 13776,50.45
Total Equity and liabilities 313,54.24 30341,93.13

Sep accompanying nates forming part of financial statements {1 to 48]

As per our report of even date attached
For SHARP & TANNAN ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 109983W

Digitally signed by
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TMF Business Services Limited (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED) {CIN - U45200MH1989PLCO50444)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

(X in lakhs}
For the year ended For the year ended
Particubars Notes March 31 March 31
2024 2023
| Revenue from operations 22
{a) Sale of Service 50,40.46 49,58.85
(b} Gther operating revenue 1.86 -
Total Revenue from operations 50,42.32 49,58.85
H Otherincome 22A 5,28.48 3618,54,99
I Total income (I + 11} 55,70.80 3668,23.84
iV Expenses
{a) Employee banefits expenses 23 74.88 303,91.81
{b} Finance cost 24 25,26.85 2047,16.66
{c} Depreciation, amortization and impairment 5&6 37,66.52 56,79.28
{d} Impairment of financial instruments and other assets 25 1,54.54 1688,52.46
(e} Other expenses 26 6,77.05 £10,58.32
Total expenses 72,39.84 4706,98.53
V' Profit/{Loss) before exceptional items and tax (14 - 1v) {16,69.04) {1038,74.59}
Vi Exceptional iterns - -
VH Profit/[Loss) before tax {V - i} {16,69.04) (1038,74.69)
VIH Tax expense [ {income)
{a) Current tax 14 - (2.45)
(b} Tax in respect of earlier years 14 30.47
{c] Deferred tax 14 {6,21.40) {5,53.17)
Total tax expense {5,590.93} (5,55.52)
X Profit/(Loss) for the year fram continuing operations (VI - Vit {10,78.11} {1033,192.07}
X Profit{{Loss) for the year {10,78.11) £1633,12.07)
Xl Qther comprehensive income
A i Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 0.53 5,23.17
{b} Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income - (3,73.87)
i, income tax relating 1o items that will not be reclassified to profit or Joss « 54.59
Subtotal {A) 0.53 2,43.89
B i, Items that will be reclassified to profit or joss
{a} Net Gainsfilosses) on cash flow hedges - 28,52.11
(b} Debt Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income - {83,89.12}
ii. Income tax relating to items that will be reclassifiad to profit or loss - 21,11.37
Subtotal {B) - {34,25.64)
Other Comprehensive Incorne {A + B) 0.53 {31,81.75)
XH Total comprehensive income for the year {10,77.58) {1065,00.82)
XHI Earnings per share of X 3.80 each (face value of share) 28
Basic {in %) (1.10} (131.20
Diluted (in %} (1.10} {131.20)

See accompanying notes forming part of financial statements (1 to 449}

As per our report of even date attached
For SHARP & TANNAN ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reglstration Number: 109983wW

- Uigltatly signed by
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TMEF Business Sarvices Limited [FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED) (CIN - U45200MH1939PLCOS0444)
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

{%in lakhs}
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31 March 31
2024 2023
A. CASH FLOW FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net {foss) before tax (16,69.04} {1038,74.69)
Adjustments for:
Interest Income on loans, deposits & investmants {1.58} {3099,53.52)
Finance costs (other than Interest expense on lease liability) 25,26.85 2040,71.81
Interest expense on lease {iability - 5,44.85
Dividend income . ‘ {3,77.37}
Gain on sale of investments {76.36} (205,75.47)
MTM on investments measured at fair value through profit or foss - (5,22.12)
Allowance for loan {osses and write-off loans " 1703,23.24
Aliowance for doubtful foans and advances {others) (net of write-off) 1,25.88 (12,70.78)
Depraciation and amortization 37,66.52 56,79.28
{profit)/Loss on sale of property, plant and equipments 4,73.75 22.46
Balances written back - {8,71.83)
Fair value changes on derivative instruments - 10,08.69
Loss on asset held for sale - ‘ 75,60.93
QOperating cash flow before working capital changes 51,4602 {382,33.52)
Movements in working capital
Trade payables 2,05.87 43,45.85
Cther financial abitities 2,37.84 {16,29.31)
Gther current and non-current liabilities 2,37.63 (5,54.94)
Trade receivables (3,62.15) 15,70.23
Cther financiat assets 16,02.97 {110,41.08}
Provisions {88.94) 1,78.83
Loans - ' 2625,80.44
Other non ¢urrent assets and other current assets {18,15.43) {15,93.04)
Assets heid for sale - 179,25.88
51,79.81 2323,83.44
interest income recelved on loans, investments & deposits - 3112,55.18
Inceme taxes paid {net) 73,80.97 {48,61.82}
Net cash generated from operating activities 125,50.78 5397,76.80
B. CASH ELOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipments and intangible assets {71,36.35) (36,99.92)
Proceads from sale of property, plant and equipments 6,53.74 13,1175
Purchase of mutual fund units {598,07.00) {87652,61.74)
Redemption of mutual fund units 595,83.06 87551,38.24
investment in government securities - {461,72.65)
Distribution from SBI trust securities - 16.54
investment in treasury bills - {1508,06.07)
Redemption of treasury bills - 2005,00.00
Rividend income - 3,77.37
interest on fixed deposits 1.58 -
Depaosits/restricted deposits with banks (9,99.00} {45,46.21}
Realisation of daposits/rastricted deposits with banks 5,00.00 418,25.87
Net cash generated/{used in) from investing activities {69,03.97) 286,84.18
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long term barrowings - S008,09.73
Repaymaent from jong term borrowings - {9545,24.72)
Proceeds from short term borrowings 634,00.00 11404,88.31
Repayment from short term borrowings (664,05.16) {14650,00.00)
Finance costs paid (25,26.85) {1723,15.93)
interast payment on lease liability - {6,44.85}
Principal payment of lease liability g {12,56.61)
bistributions made to holdars of Instruments entirely equity in nature - {132,48.25)
Pramium on issue of equity shares - 563,68.67
Equity share issue - 136,67.78
Net cash {used in} from financing activities (55,32.01) {4956,55.87)

Net increase in/{decrease in} cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C} {refer note helow} 1,24.80 728,05.11




TMF Business Services Limited {(FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED) {CIN - U45200MH1989PLCO50444)
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Z in lakhs}
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31 March 31
2024 2023
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 32270192 2498,96.81
Opening balance transfer on account of common control transaction (3224,89.13) -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 11} 3,37.60 3227,01.92

See accompanying notes forming part of financial statements {10 49)

Note:
1. The Statement of Cash Flows has been presented using indirect methed as per the requirements of ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
TMF Business Services Limited

As per our report of even date attached
For SHARP & TANNAN ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 109983W

Dighally signed by
Varsha Vasant Varsha Vasant Purandare

PATHAMADAIL Olgally syardy
BALACHANDR erackanzaavaasy

R Purandare ?3?;;024942920%21 ANBALAY - Srermmns
IgHa .
Pramod gty signe Varsha Purandare P B Bafaji
Ramesh fameshenise Director Diractor
. - Date; 2024.04.29 CIN - 7 -02762
Bhise 22:21:08 +05'30' (BIN - 65288076) (DIN 62883}
Pramod Bhise . .
Partner VI N U - Digitaily signed
Membership No. 047751 by VINU NAR
N AI R  Date:2024.0429
. 20:42:34 +05'3¢°
Vinu Nair
Manager
) Gigitally signed by
Piace: Pune UDAY Digitalty signed by NEERAJ " NEERAJ KUMAR
Date: April 29, 2024 UDAY UCHI KUMAR DWIVED!
UCHIL Dg?;_ég“&g?éi? Date; 2024.04.25
3457 + DWIVED! 5303740530
Uday Uchil Neeraj Dwived
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No:-A20874
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 29, 2024



TMF Business Services Limited {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED] {CIN - U45200MVH1989PLCOS0444)

i

21

2.2

2.3

]

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Company infarmation

TMF Business Services Limited {Formerly known as Tata Motors Finance Limited) {"the Company") is 2 pubtic iimited Company Incorporated and
domiciled in India and has its registered office in Mumbal, india.

The Company is a subsidiary of TMF Holdings Limited, With affect from August 07, 2023, the name of the Company has changed to TMF Business
Servicas Limited from Tata Motors Finance Limited. The company is engaged primarily in leaseing of vehicles manufactured by Tats Motors and its
group companies.

The Company has surrenderad the Cartificate of Registration {CoR) granted by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as result of demerger {for more
detall, please refer note no. 27} of the Non-Banking Finance related business {"NBFC Undertaking"} of the Company through the Scheme of
demerger which came in to effect from June 30, 2023.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on April 28, 2024,
Basis of preparation of financial statements

Staternent of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with indian Accounting Standards {'ind AS') prescribed under section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) read with relevant rules issued thereunder and the other accounting principtes generally accepted in
india. Any application guidance/ clarifications/ directions issued by the Resarve Bank of India or other regulators are implemented as and when
they are issued/ applicable.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain eritical accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosed amount of contingent liabilities. Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
compiexity, or areas whera assumptions are significant to the Company are discussed in Note 3.{1) - Significant atcounting judgements, estimates
and assumptions.

The financial statements are prasented in indian Rupees {INR) and all valuss are rounded to the nearest lacs, except when otherwise indicated.

Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments and plan assets of defined benefit
plans, which are measured at fair vaiue at the end of each reporting pericd as explained In the accounting policies below.

Presantation of finandal statements

The financial statements of the Company are presented as per Schedule il {Division H) of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable to company, as
notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). The Statement of Cash Flows has been presented using indirect method as per the
raquiraments of in AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Due tc demerger of the NBFC underiaking of the company as detailed in note no. 27, the following accounting policies are not applicable for
current year and henca not given.

1.Business model assessmeant for classification and measurement of financial assets

2.Effective Interest Rate (EIR} methodology

3.Determination of lease term where the Company is 2 lessee

4. Income from direct assignment

S. Foreign currency

8. Gther intangible assets

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statemeants in conformity with ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures of contingent liabilities at the date of these
financial statements and reported amounts of income and expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewad at each balance sheet date. Ravisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimates is revised and future period affected.

in particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting poiicies that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are included in following notes :

a} Note 3 {viii}- Impairment allowances of financiat assets

b) Mote 3(iv} -Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

¢} Note 3({vi} and 32- Measurement of assets and obligations of defined benefit employee plans
d) Note 3(iil} and 14- Recoverability and recognition of deferred tax assets

e) Note 3(vil}- Measurement of provisions and contingencies

£) Note 3(ix) and 33- Fair value measurement of financial instruments



TMF Business Services Limited {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED] {CIN - U45200MH 1989P1.C050444)

iz}

(i)

{iv)

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Revenue recognition

Revenue from Operations

{a} Rental lncome

Rental incame arising from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
The rental income Is recognised under the head sale of Service in the statement of profit or loss,

Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred taxes. Income tax expense is recognised In the statement of profit & ioss except when they
relate to items that are recognised outside the statement of profit and loss (whether in other comprehensive income or directly in equity), in which
case tax is also recognised outside the statement of profit and loss. Current income taxes are detarmined based on respactive taxable income of
Company and tax rules applicabie for respective tax jurisdictions,

Deferred tax assets and liabifities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying values of assets
and liabifities and thelr respective tax bases, and unutilised business loss and depraciation carry-forwards and tax credits. Such deferred tax assets
and fiabifities are computed separately, Deferred tax assets sre recognised to the extent that it is prabable that future taxable income will be
avaflable against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax lossgs, depreciation carry-forwards and unused tax credits could be
utilized,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based on the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realised or the
Hiability is settled, based on tax rates and tax lews that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date, The effect of

Current and deferred tax assets and Habilities are offset when there is a legaily enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
lisbilities and when they relate to income taxes lavied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current and deferred
tax assets and lizbilities on & net basis,

Interest on Income tax refund is recognied as income in statement of profit and loss at the time of receipt,

Property, Plant and equipment

Property, plant and equiprment (PPE} are stated at cost of acquisition fess accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Cost includes purchase
price, non-refundable taxes and levies and other directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to its location and werking condition for its
intended use.

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method over the useful lives of the assets considering the nature, estimated usage, operating
conditions, past history of replacement and anticipated technological changes.

Schedule If to the Companies Act 2013 (‘Schedule’) prescribes the useful lives for various class of assets. For certain class of assats, based on
technical evaluation and assessment, Managament belleves that, the useful lives adopted by it reflects the periods over which these assets are
expected to be used. Accordingly for those assets, the usefu! lives estimated by management are different from those prescribed in the Schedule.
Management's estimates of the useful lives for various class of PPE are a5 given below:

Type of asset Estimated usehd fife
iehicles On Dperating Losse 44 byears

The useful lives and method of depreciation is reviewed at least at each year-end, Changes in expected useful fives are treated as change in
accounting estimates,

Assets costing less than % 5,000/- are expensed off at the time of purchase.
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{vi)

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Leases

Contracts/arrangements, or part of a contract/arrangement meeting the definition of "lease” and falting within the scope of ind AS 116 "Leases” te
follow acegunting policies mentionad below

{A} Company as a Lessor

Laase classification is made at the inception date and s reassessed only if there is a lease modification. Changes in estimates (for example, changes
in estimates of the economic life or of the residual value of the underlying asset), or changes In circumstances {for example, default by the lessee),
is not 2 lease modification do not give rise to a new classification of a lease for acoounting purposes,

Assgets given on operating lease

The Company has given vehiclas on lease where it has substantially retained the risks and rewards incidantal to ownarship of an vehicle and hente
these are classified as operating lease. These assets given on operating lease are included in Property Plant & Eguipment {FPE). Depreciation on
the vehicle are recognized as an expense In the statement of profit and lass and initial direct cost Incurred in obtaining an cperating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the vehicle and are recognised in statement of profit and loss in the form of depreciation over the operating lease
term.

Lease rental income is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss as per contractual rental unless another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern i which the benefit derived from the leased asset is diminished.

Employee benefits

1A} Short - term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognised
during the period when the employee renders the service. These banefits include salaries and performance incentives/bonuses which are expected
1o ocour within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services.

{B) Past Employment/retirement benefit Plans

{1} Defised cantribution plans

For provident fund and superannuation fund, the company dees not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made.
Payments/contributions to the Company’s defined contribution plans are accounted for on an accruat basis (i.e. whan employees have rendered
the service entitiing them to the contribution} and are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Superannuation fund
Contribution to the superannuation fund is made at 15% of basic salary for the employees who have opted to the schamé, managad by the
ultimate holding company and is charged to the Statemant of Profit and Loss on accrual basis.

{a) Provident fund

The employees are entitled to receive benefies under provident fund, where both, the employess and the Company, make monthly contributions
at a specified percentage of the covered employees’ basic salary. The contribution is paid to the Regional Provident fund office. The Company has
ne fiability for future benefits other than its annual contribution and recognises such contributions as an expense in the year in which employee
renders the related services,

{a) Gratuity

For defined benefit schemes in the form of gratuity plan, the cost of providing benefits is actuarially determined using the projected unit credit
method, with actuarial vajuations being carried out at each year end. The retiremeant benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents
the present value of the defined benefit obligation as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets.

The Company have an obligation towards gratuity, post employment/retirement defined benefit plan covering eligible employees. The benefitisin
the form of lump sum payments to eligible employees on resignaticn, retirament, or death while in employment or on termination of employment
of an amount equivalent to 15 days’ to 30 days’ basic salary payabie for each completed year of service, Vesting oceurs upon compietion of five
years of service. The liability determined basis actuarial valuation is compared with the fair value of plan assets and the shortfall or excess is
accountad for as a liability or an asset respectively.

The present value of the said obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows, using market yields of government bonds
of aquivalent term and currency to the fiability.

The interest income / (expense) are calculeted by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit fability or asset. The net interest income /
{expense} on the net defined benefit fiability is recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss,
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{viii}
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Nates forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptlions ars recegnised in the period in which
they occur, directly in OCI. They are included in retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in Egquity and in the Balance Sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in
profit or loss as past service cost.

{C) Other jong term employee benefit plans
{1) Defined benefit plans

{a} Compensated absences

The liabifities for compensatad absences are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit cregit method. The benefits are discounted using
the appropriate market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the refatad obligation.
Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A pravision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably,
and it is probable that an cutflew of economic benefits will be required to settle the chligation,

If the effect of the time value of money is materfal, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to the net present
vaiue using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflacts current market ssessments of the time value of money and, where appropriste, the
risks specific to the liability.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an cutflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent liabflities are also disclosed when there is a possible
obligation arising from past events, the existance of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-cccurrence of one or more uncertain
future events, not wholly within the control of the Company.

Claims against the Company, where the possibility of any cutflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabilities.
Provisions, contingent labilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date,

Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of aconomic benefits is probabie. Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial fiability or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial instruments are recognised when the Company becaomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised inftially at fair value. However, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset are added to the fair value. The transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in prefit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
{reguiar way trades) are recognised on the trade date, Le., the date that the Company commils to purchase or sell the asset.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether thair cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest,

Classification and Subsequent measurement

For the purpeses of initial recognition, financial assets are classified in the following categories -
a. at amortised cost, or

b. at fair value through other comprehensive income [FYOCQ!, or

<. at fair value through profit or Joss {FVTPL)
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{8)

{ix}

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Impairment of financial assets
The Company applies the Expected Cradit Loss (ECL) modet in accordance with ind A5 108 for recognising impairment loss on financial assets.

The Company recognises 2 loss aliowance for axpected credit iosses on a financial asset that is at amortised cost or at fair value through cther
comprehensive income. Expected credit osses are forward looking and are measured in a way that is unblased and represents a probability-
weighted amount, takes into account the time vatue of money (values are discounted using the applicable effective interest rate} and uses
reasonable and supportable information,

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of & financial assets is written- off {either partially or fully} to the extent that there is no reasonable expactation of
recovering the asset in its entirety or a portion thereof, However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Company’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where apgropriate. Any subsequent recoverias against such financial
assats are credited to the statemant of profit and loss.

Financiat liabilities

Lnitial racognition and measurement

All financial Habilities are recognised initially at fair value, However, in the case of financial liabilities not recorded at fair vaiue through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of financial Hiabilitles are deducted from the fair value of financial abilities, The
transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of financial fiabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in profit or
loss.,

The Company’s financial liabilities majorly comprisa of trade and other payables, loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate {EIR} method or at fair value through profit or
loss (FVTEL).

{a) At FVTPL:

Financial liabilities, designhated upon initial recognition at FVTPL, are designated as such at the initlal date of recognition, and only if the criteria in
tnhd AS 109 are satisfied.

{b} At amaortised cost:

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate {E1R}
method. Amortised cost Is caiculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the E£IR. The EiR amortisation is included in interest expenses in the profit or joss,

Fair value measuremeany

A number of Company’s accounting poilcies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and
liabilities. ’ .

Fair value is the price that would be received to sei! an asset or paid to transfer 3 liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using ancther valuation technique.

Fair value measurements under ind AS are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as foliows:

Leve! 4: queted prices {unadiusted) in active markets for Identical assets or fiabilities that the Company can access at measurement date;

Levai 2: inputs other than quoted prices includad in Lavel 1 that are observable for the assat or liability, aither directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs for the assef or liability that are not based on ohservable market data {unobservable inputs) that the Company can access at
measurement date

Recent Accounting Pronouncement

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”} notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time, For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the
exlsting standards applicable to the Company.
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TIF Business Services Limited (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED} (CIN - U45200MH1989PLC050444)
Naotes forming part of financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

7. Investment Non-Current

{Xinlakhs)
Face Value Quantity Asat Quantity As at
o i s IR i s
. .
mvestments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Investment in equity shares
{a) Quoted
1 Tata Steel Limited (face vatue reduced from Rs, 10 per sharete Re.1 per ) } £0,95.110 £2.59.39
shara)

10 il. Tata Chemicals Limited - - 10,080 97.83

1 iii. Tata Power Limited - - 9,120 17.35

1 iv. Tata Consumer Products Limied {pursuant to Scheme of Amangement, 114 : B 11468 §1.28

shares were alloted for every 100 shares held in Tata Chemicals Limited)

10 v. NTPC Limited ~ - 1,56,600 2,73.15

1 vi. NMDC Limited - - 20,000 22.31

vil. NMDG Steel Limited ({pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement, 1 shares were A .
10 alicted for every 1 shares held in NMDC Limited) 20,000 §.21
10 viii Coal India Limited - - 11,504 25.48
(b) Unguasted - .

10 . Taj Air Limited - - 42,00,000 -
1,000 iil. Tata Intemnational Limited - - 19,350 41,84.55
100 #. Tata Industries Limited - - 9,893,753 19,08.00

Subtotal {A) ~ 129,96.52
Investments measured at fait value through profit and loss
investment in equity shares
{a) Quoted
10 I Automabile Corporation of Goa Limited - - 48,315 3,46.85
{b) Unguoted
z i Tata Technologies Limited { Note 1) - - 811,992 177,01.43
10 ii. Tata Hitachi Construction Machinery Company Private Limited - - 2,85.714 -
Irvestment in trust securities {partly paid}
10 i. BBl Macquarie Infrastructure Trust - - 1,50,00,000 4,89.34
subtotal (B} . 185,37 62
Investments measured at Amortised cost
Investment in Preference shares
Fuily Paid Non - Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares {Ungjuated)
a0 {a) 6% Tata Precision industries (India) Lirsited - - 40,000 40,00
Fully Patd Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares {Unquoted)
le0 (b} 8.50% Tata Precision Industries (India) Limited - - 1,50,000 1,50.00
Investments in Debentures and Bonds measured at Amortised Cost
Fully Paid Secured, Nan - Cumulative, Non - Convertible, Redeerable Debentures (quoted)
125 {2} 8.49% NTPC Limited (issued as bonus} - -
investment in government securities {Quoted)
{a) Government securiies bends - - 797,45.15
Subtotal (€} - 799,35.15
Total {A+8+C) o 1134,69.29
7 - investment Current
{Tin lakhs)
Face Valua Quantity Guantity
Per unit Description {in nos.} as at M :Ziatzozd {in nos.} as at Ma :Z:‘ZGZS
{in &s) March 31, 2024 Arek 3t March 32, 2023 L
Investments maasured at fafr value through proflt and doss
Investment in Mutual Funds
{i} Investments in Mutual fund 207,12.67
Invastment in government securities (Quoted)
(i Government securities bands-AVS 9,49.10
Investments measured at Ameortised cost
Investment in government securities {Quoted)
{i} Treasury bills - 109,46.31
Total - 326,08.08
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8.

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Loans and advances

{Z in Jakhs)
. As at March 31 As at March 31

Particulars 2024 2023

Secured

{refer note 2,384}

Current

(A} At amortised cost

From financing activities

From financing activities

(&) Termioans - 4980,98.75

(b}  Finance Lease receivables - 26,77.29

(c)  Credit substitutes - 22.15
(refer note 1)
Total (A) - Gross 5017,28.19

Less: Impairment loss allowance - (562,40.03}

Total - 4455,58.16

Non Current

(A) At amortised cost

From financing activities

From financing activities

{a} Termlcans - 6521,12.64

{b} Finance Lease receivables - 54,7721

{¢)  Credit substitutes - 151,74.31
{refer note 1)
Total {A} - Gross - 7127,64.16

Less: Impairment loss aliowance Non - (838,02.78)

Total - 6289.61.38

Current

(B} Term loans-FVOCI - 13055,00.24
Less: Impairment icss allowance - {314,58.31)

Total {B) - Net - 12740,41.93

Unsecured

Current

(A} At amortised cost

From financing activities

From financing activities

(a) Termloans 71.41

(b) Credit substitutes - 211,51.53
(refer note 1)

(c) Channel financing - 88,04.22
Total {A) - Gross - 301.17.16
Less: Impairment loss allowance - {33,75.44)
Total (A) - Net - 267 41.72

Non Current

{A) At amortised cost

From financing activities

From financing activities

(a) Termloans - 3,74.00
Total (A) - Gross - 3,74.00
Less: Impairment loss allowance - (43.97)
Total (A) - Net - 3,30.03

1 lnvestments in bonds, debentures and other financial instruments which, in substance, form a part of the Company's financing

activities ("Credit Substitutes") have been classified under Loans.

2 The Company covers/secures the credit risk associated with the loans given to customers by creating an exclusive
charge/nypothecation/security on the assets/vehicles as mentioned/specified in the loan agreement with the customers.
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10.

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

3 Secured Advances Includes Vehicle term loan tending done to Micro and Small Enterprises, for which the Company has
availed the benefit of Credit Guarantee Fund Trust for Micro and Small Enterprises {(CGTMSE) scheme to secure credit
default risk.

4 Secured Advances inciudes Fully backed guarantee of Central Government of India under the emergency credit Line
guarantee scheme (ECLGS).

Bank balances

(T in lakhs)
. As at March 31 As at March 31
Particulars 2024 2023
Current
Deposits with banks 99.00 8,23.14
{Refer note 1) ‘
Total 99.00 8,23.14
Non Current
Earmarked balances with banks - 36.35
{Refer note 2)
Margir money / cash collateral with banks - 52,82.42
{Refer note 3}
Total - 53,18.77 .
1. Fixed deposits for current year is lien against bank guarantees given by bank for Income tax matters.
2. BEarmarked balances with banks on account of unclaimed interest on debt securities.
3. Margin money / ¢ash collateral with banks acting as credit enhancement in respect of securitisation transactions.
Other financial assets
As at March 31 As at l\f ir‘h! 3
. s at Marc s at Marc
Particulars 5024 2023
Non Current
Deposits - 29,66.7¢
Derivative financial instruments - 96,99.07
(refer Note no 18A)
Total - 126,65.86
Current
Interest accrued on deposits - 4,51.82
Deposits (Net of provision Nil; March 31, 2023 ¥ 52.96 lakhs) - 3777
Interest accrued on investments - 15,11.71
Others (Met of provision Nil ; March 31, 2023 7 26,98.10 lakhs) - 746,43.97
Receivable from mutual funds 4.00,30 -
Other Receivables® 41,89 2,37.54
Total 442,29 768,82.81

No other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any
uther receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.
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Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Cash and cash equivalents

(¥ In lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank deposit with originat maturity of iess than 3 months - 3024,00.00
Bajance with Banks 3,37.80 184,06.61
Cheques, drafts on hand - 12,52.08
Cash on hand - 6,43.23
Totai 3,37.60 3227,01.92
Other assets
{¥ in lakhs)
. As at March 31 As at March 31
Particulars 2094 2023
Non Current
Capital advances 14,08.97 7.28.01
Deposits with statutory authorities - 54.20
{Net of provision Nil; March 31, 2023 ¥ 87.92 lakhs)
Deposits paid under protest - 11,82.21
Taxes recoverable and dues from governmeni{Net of provision) - 2.52
{Net of provision Nif; March 31, 2023 ¥ 3,03.69 lakhs}
Total 14,08.97 19,66.94
Current
Taxes recoverable and dues from government 18,05.81 46,87.42
Prepaid expenses 3.73 46,50.54
Stamp papers - 7,05.09
{thers non-financial asseis - 12,73.52
(Net of provision Nil; March 31, 2023 ¥ 1,65.75 lakhs)
Total 18,09.54 113,16,57
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TME Business Services Limited (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED) (CIN - U45200MH1989PLC050444)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

14. Come 1axes

a) income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss

(Z in lakhs)

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March 31 ended March
2024 2023
income tax expense
Current tax
Current tax on profits for the year - -
Adiustments for current tax of prior periods 30.47 (2.45)
Total current tax expense 30.47 {2.45)
Deferred tax
Decrease {increase) in deferred tax asssts {6,21.40) (12,50.61)
(Decrease) increase in deferred tax liabilities - 6,97.43
. Totai deferred tax expense/(benefit) (6,21.40} (5,53.18)
income Tax expense (5,90.93) {5,55.63)
b) Reconciliation of the income tax expenses and accounting profit
(Z in lakhs)

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March 31 endec;:ﬂarch
2024 2023
Reconciliation of the income tax expanse and the accounting profit muitiphied by India's tax rate:
Profit before taxes (16,69.04) (1038,74.69)
Income tax expenses calculated at Statutory tax rate (4,20.06) (261,42.18)
Tax effect of the amount which are not taxable in calculating taxable income : '
- Effect of expenses not deductible for tax computation - 77.73
- Utilization of unrecognised and unused tax losses to reduce current tax expense (37.64) -
- Deferred tax assets not recognised because realization is not probable - 255,12.27
- Adjustment racognised in refation to the current tax of prior years 30.47 (2.48}
- Others (1,63.70) -
Income tax expensel{credit) recognised for the year at effective tax rate {590.93) (555.63)
Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2024 are as follows:
c) Deferred tax assets/liabilities (net)
(¥ in lakhs}
r
Particuars asat TR Thvougnprofit | o e s at
April 01, 2023 d and loss . March 31, 2024
emerger income
Deferred tax liabilities :
- Fair Valuation of financial assets measure 115,24.17 115,24.17 - - -
- Income to be taxed on actual recelpt basi 52,54.91 52,64.81 - - -
- Soureing commission claimed oh incurren 28,70.32 28,7032 - - -
- Others -
Total deferred tax liabilities 196,49.40 19,649.40 - - -
Deferred tax asset
- Property, plant & egquipment - Accumulate 7,68.63 9,23.58 5,83.24 4,38.26
- Unabsorbed and unused tax losses and unabsorbed depraciation - -
« Expenses deductible in future years: -
-Provisions for impairment aliowances on fir 411,28.31 410,66.73 28,19 - 89.77
-Compensated absences and retirement be 44527 4,45.02 - - 0.25
- Others {7,38.81) (7,38.81) - - -
Total deferred tax assets 416,03.40 416,96.52 6,21.40 - 5,28.28
" Net deferred tax asset/(liabilities} 219,54.00 220,47.12 6,21.40 - 5,28.28



TMF Business Services Limited (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED} (CIN - U45200MH1989PLC050444)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2022 are as follows:

¢) Deferred tax assets/liabilities (nat)

(Z in fakhs)
Through other
] As at Through profit . As at
Particulars April 1, 2022 and loss comprehensive o rch 31, 2023,
income

Deferred tax liabilities :
- Fair Valuation of financial assets measured at FVTOC and | 185.98.72 1,31.41 22.05.96 115.24.17
- Income {o be taxed on actual receipt basis 46,70.71 5,84.20 - 52,54.91
- Sourcing commission claimed on incurrence basis 28,88.50 (18.18) - 28,70.32
Total deferred tax liabilities 211,57.93 697.43 22,05.96 196,49.40
Deferred tax asset :
- Property, plant & eguipment - Accumulated depreciation 340.89 427.74 - 7.68.63 .
- Expenses deductible in future years: -
-Provisions for impairment allowances on financial assets 396,11.03 15,17.28 - 411,28.31
-Compensated absences and retirement benefits allowable on 4,58.84 {13.37} - 4,45.27
- Cthars (57.77) (6,81.04) - (7,38.81)
Total deferred tax assets 403,52.79 12,50.61 - 416,03.40
Net deferred tax asset/{liabilities) exci MAT Credit 191,94.86 5,53.18 (22,05.96) 219,54.00
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) {net) 191,94.86 5,563.18 {22,05.96) 219,54.00

d) Amounts recognised directly
There was no income or expenses for current year and previous year for which tax impact has been routed through reserve.

€) Tax losses
As at March 31, 2024, unrecognised deferred tax assets amounted to Rs. 105.98 lakhs {As at March 31, 2023 - Rs.82,72.53 lakhs) which

can be carded forward indefinitely and Rs. 278.05 lakhs {As at March 31, 2023 - 280,12.03 lakhs) which can be carried forward upto a
specified period. These relate primarily to depreciation carry forwards and business losses. The deferred tax asset has not been recognised
on the basts that its recovery is not probable in the foresesable future.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets expire unutilised based on the year of origination as follows:

(% in lakhs)
Year Amount
March 31, 2031 2,78.05

Total 2,78.05

A scheme of arrangement was filed by TMF Business Services Limited (TMFBSL'}, and Tata Motors Finance Limited  [formerly known as
Tata Motors Finance Solutions Limited] (‘TMFL') for demerger of Non-banking Finance related Business of TMFBSL into the Company,
which was approved by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai bench on 12 May 2023. The Schems came in to effect from
June 30, 2023. Appointed date of the Scheme is as Aprit 1, 2023. In accordance with the provision of section 72A of the Income Tax Act,
1961, Pursuant to this demerger, business losses of Rs 1,080,75.72 lakhs and unabsaorbed depreciation of Rs 362,81.48 lakhs were
transferred from TMFBSL to TMFL.



TMF Business Services Limited (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MGTORS FINANCE LIMITED) (CIN - U45200MKE 19897050444}

Notes forming part of financial staterments for the year apded March 31, 2024

15  Eguity Share Capital

{Xin lzkhs}
Particulars As at viarch 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
Number T Kumber 2
Authorised
Equity Shares of T 3.80 each { £ 100 sach with voting rights) 12,60,00,000 1200,00.00 12,00,00,000 1200,00,00
12,00,04,500 1240,00.00 12,00,00,000 1200,00.00
lssued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up
Equity Shares of £3.80 each % 100 each with veting rights)
9,79,65,969 37,22.71 9,7%,65,969 979,65.97
Total 9,78,65,969 37,2271 2,79,65,062 979,65.97
a} Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
{Zin lakhs}
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 3%
2024 2023
Number i Number z
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the period/year 9,79,65,96% 979,65.97 £,08,27,689 608,27.69
Equity Shares issued on conversion of CCPS during the period/year - - 2,34,70,506.00 234,70.51
Equity Shares lssued during the period/year - - 1,36,67,774.00 136,67.77
Reduction of share capital pursuant to schema of demerger - {842,43.25) - -
Shares outstanding at the end of tha year 9,79,65,969 37,22.71 9,79,65,963 973,65.97
b} Details of shares held by holding company and its subsidiaries:
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
% of Issued Share % of issued Share
Nussher B Number .
Capitz| Capital
A. Equity shares with voting rights
Holding Company
TMF Holdings Limited 9,61,43,953 98.14 8,67,43,953 9814
Subsidiaries of hotding company
Tata T\An:mfs F-inance Limited {formerly known as Tata Motors Finance 18,22,086 1.86 18.22,016 185
solutions timited)
¢} Details of shares held by 2ach shareholder bolding more than 5 percent of the issued share capital:
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
4
No. of shares % o lssut?d Share No. of shares % of |ssuz.ed Share
Cagitai Capitat
Equity Share with voting rights
TP Holdings Limited 9,561,43,953 98.14 9,61,43,953 98.14
d) Details of shares held by Promoters
Promoter name Ag at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
D
No. of shares % of Issuc?d Shara No. of sharas % of issm.:d Share
Capita] Capital
TMF Holdings Limited 9,61,43,953 98.14 8,61,43,953 88.14
T i imi ta Mot i
ata {\/iotor's Ifnnance Limited {formerly known as Tata Motors Finance 18,22,016 1.86 18,22,015 156
Solutions Limited)
% change in Promototers shareholding during the year Is as below
Promater name As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
TMF Heldings Uimited - 1.00
Tata Motors Finance Limited {formerly known as Tata Motors Finance _ (100}

Solutions Limited)

&) Terms / rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has a singla class of equity shares. Accordingly, alf equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company's residual assets. The equity
shares are antitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time subject to payment of dividend to praference shareholders. The voting rights of an equity shareholder
on a poll are in propartion 1o its share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. On winding up of tha Company, the heiders of aquity shares will be entitled to receive
the residual assats of the Company, remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of the equity shares held.

f} Information regarding issue of shares in the last five years

{it  The Company has hot issued any shares without payment being recaived in cash.

(i} The Company has not issued any bonus shares.
{iil} The Company has not undertaken any buy-back of shares,

g) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting year

The Company has not declared dividends at the end of the reporting year (March 31, 2023 - Nilj.
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Tata Motors Finance Limited (FORMERLY KNOWRN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED) {CIN - U45200MH1989PLC050444)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Instruments entirefy equity in nature
{i} Perpetual Debt

16B.

(X in lakhs}
) As at March 31 As at March 31
Particulars 2024 2023
Number B Numbey 3
Balance as at beginning of the year 13,480.00 1348,00.00 13,480.00 1348,00.00
Amount transtered pursuant to scheme of demerger {13,480.00) {1,34,800.00) - -
Balance as at end of the year - - 13,480.00 1348,00.00

The Company had issued 13,480 subordinated, listed, unsecured, rated perpetual securities of face value of X 10 lakhs each aggregating 1o % 1348,00.00
lakhs.The coupon on these securities ranges between 8.35% p.a. to 11.50% p.a. These securities were perpetual in nature with no maturity or
redemption and are callable only at the option of the Company. There was step up provision of 100 bps over the respective coupeon rate if the securities
are not called by the issuer at the end of 10 years from the date of allotment.The payment of any Coupon may be cancelled or suspended at the
discretion of the Board of Director.

a)The comapny is not liable to pay the Coupon an the these securities and shall be entitled to defer the payment of Coupon, if

L it's capital to risk assets ratic (“CRAR"} is below the minimum regulatory requirement prescribed by RBY; or

ii. the impact of such payment results in the Company’s CRAR falling below or remaining below the minimum regufatory requirement preseribed by
Reserve Bank of India;

b} In the event that making of any Coupon payment by the fssuer may result in net loss or increase the net loss of the Issuer, the making of such of
Coupon payment by the Issuer shall be subject to the prior approval of the RBI and shall be made on receipt of such approval provided that the CRAR
remains above the regulatory norm after the making of such payment,

¢} The Coupon on the debentures shail not be cumulative except in cases as in {a) above,

As these securities are perpetual in nature and the Company does not have any redemption obligation, these have been classified as equity.

Equity Component of Compound Financial Instrument
{Xin lakhs)

Particulars

As at March 31

As af March 31

2024

2022

Number =

Number X

a}

Authorised
Praeference shares of X 100 each

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up

Equity portion of cumulative, non-participating
Campuisortly convertible preference share (CCPS) of 2
100 each

Equity portion of non-cumulative, non-participating
Compulserily convertible preference share (CCPS! of X
100 each

Total

8,00,00,000 800,060.00

£§96,00.0C

8,00,60,000 800,00.00

800,00.00

Reconciliation of the CCPS outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

(% in kakhs)

Particulars

As at March 31

As at March 31

2024

2023

Number %

Number X

b}

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year

Shares converted during the year into eguity (Refer point
{e) below}
Shares outstanding at the end of the year

Details of CCPS held by holding company and jts
subsidiaries:

7,23,00,000 471,11.44

(7,23,66,000.00} {471,11.44)

Particulars

As at March 31

As at March 31

2024

2023

Number %uof total shares

Number %of total shares

TMF Holdings Limited



Tata Motors Finance Limited (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED} {CIN - U45200MH 1989PLL050444])
Notes forming part of financiat statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

¢) Details of Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares {CCPS) heid by each shareholder helding more
. As at March 31 As at March 31
Particulars 2634 3093
Number of shares % of holding in that Number of shares % of holding in that
held class of shares held class of shares
TMF Heldings Limited - - - -
d} Details of shares held by Pramoters
particulars As at March 31 As at Marth 31
2024 2023
No. of Shares %of total shares No. of Shares %of total shares
TMF Holdings Limited - - - .
e) Terms / rights attached to preference shares:
The Company had cumulative, non-participating compulsorily convertible preference shares (CCPS) having s face value of S 100 each. The holders of the
CCPS are entitled for dividend on a yearly basis, in preference to the equity shareholders , subject to applicable law, availability of profits, after provision
for depreciation. The CCPS were mandatorily convertible into equity shares on the date falling at the explry of 7 years from the CCPS alictment date,
However, on June 29, 2022, the Company had early converted the outstanding Compuisorily convertible preferance share {CCPS) at pre-determinad
conversion ratio, On conversion of CCPS, the Company had issued 23,470,506 equity shares of face value of X 100 each against 723,00,000 no. of CCPS of
face value of X 100 each.
£ tnformation regarding issue of shares in the last five
YRars
(i} The Company has not issued any shares without payment being received in cash.
(il The Company has not issued any bonus shares,
{iii} The Company has not undertaken any buy-back of shares.
18C
()  Other components of equity
(1} The movement of Equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income {QCH} is as follows - {% in fakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 62,81,87 85,61.15
Other comprehensive income for the yaar - (3.73.87)
income tax relating to gain/loss arising on other
comprehensive iIncome where applicable ) 94.59
Transfarred pursuant te scheme of demerger {52,81.87} -
Balance at the end of the year - 62,81.87
(2} The movement of Hedging Reserve Is as follows :- {Z in lakhs)
Particufars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 21,00.40 {9,21.58)
Gain/(loss) reclassified to profit or loss 30,30.98
Transferred pursuant to scheme of demerger 121,09.40) -
Balance at the end of the year - 21,09.40
{3} The movement of Cost of Hedging Reserve is as follows - {X in lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year {635.50} {457.03]
Gain/{loss} recognised on cash flow hedges - Galn/{Loss} {11,88.58)
Transferred pursuant to scheme of demerger 6,35.90 .
Gain/{loss) reclassified to profit or joss 10,09.69

Balance at the end of the year

{635.90)
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Tata Motors Finance Limited [FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED} {CIN - U45200MH198IPLCOS0444)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024
The movemant of Debt instruments through other comprehensive income is given in note no. 37 ‘Fair Value measurement’

{5} Summary of Other components of equity i {% in takhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income - 62,81.87
Hedging reserve - 21,09.40
Cost of hedging reserve - (635.90)
Debt instruments through cther comprehensive income - 260,45.35
Total - 338,00.72
{}  MNotes to reserves

1

{2)

(3)

{a}

{5}

(6)

7

(8)

(%

{10}

Special reserve

As per Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, the Company is required to create a reserve fund and transfer therein a sum not less than
20% of its net profit every year as disclosed in the Statement of Profit and Loss and befare any dividend is declared. Mo appropriation of any sum from
the reserve fund can be made by the Company except for the purpose as may be specified by the Reserve 8ank of India from time to time and evary
such appropriation shaill be reported to the Reserve Bank of India within twenty-one days from the date of such withdrawal.The Company transfers said
amount at the end of the financial year,

Capital redemption reserve

The Indian Companies Act, 2013 {the “Companies Act”) requires that where 2 company purchases its own sharss out of free reserves or securities
premium account, a sum equal to the nominal valuz of the shares so purchased shall be transferred to a capital redemption reserve account and details
of such transfer shall be disciosed in the balence sheet. The capital redemption resgrve account may be applied by the company, in paying up unissued
shares of the company to be issued to shareholders of the corapany as fully paid bonus shares,

Securities Premium Account
The amount received in excess of face value of the equity instruments is recognised in Securities Premium Account. Also, issue expenses in respect of
new equity infusion & CCPS infusion is recognised in Securities Premium Account.

Capital reserve

The Capital Reserve represents the compensating reversal adjustment relating to amortisation of discount on the Zero Coupon Debentures which were
charged against the Securities Premium Reserve earlier which is not aliowed as per the Companies Act, 2013. This separate reserve head Js crested
based on the FAQ issued by the Ind AS Transition Facilitation Group.

General reserve
The Company has transferred a portion of net profit of the Company before declaring dividend to General Reserve pursuant to the earlier provision of
Companies Act, 1956. Mandatory transfer to general reserve is not required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Retained earnings
Retained earnings ara the profits that the Company has earned till date. ,

Equity Instrurment through O]
it represents the cumulative gains/{losses) arising an the revaluation of Equity Shares measured at fair vaiue through OCL

Debt instruments through 0C!
1t represents the revaluation of debt instruments measured through OCI.

Hedging Reserve through QCI
it represents the effective portion of the fair value of farward contracts, designated as cash flow hedge.

Cost of hedge reserve
Fair value gain/{loss) attributable to cost of hedge on all financials instruments designated in cash flow hedge relationship are accumulated in cost of
hedge reserve.



TME Business Services Limited {[FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED] {CIN - U45200MH1933PLCO50444)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

17. Borrowings

{% in lakhs)
) As at March 31 Ag at March 31

Particulars 024 2023
Non current
Unsecurad
Perpetual Debt Instruments to the extent that do not qualify as equity - 124,81.59
Privately placed subordinated redeemable, non-convertible debentures . 957,04.87
Privately placed nen-convertible debentures - 1964,07.68
Term loans from hanks - 1272,19.93
Total - 4318,14.07
Secured {refer note [ii}}
Term toans from banks - - 7637,24 .31
Total ~ 7637,24.81
Total - 11555,38.88
Current
Unsecured
Commercial paper - 3256,07.45
Privately placed subordinated redeemable, non-convertible debentures - 229,80.77
Term loans from banks - 687,50.00
Inter Corporate Deposits from related partias 269,00.00 300,00.00
Total 26,960,00 4,47,338.22
Secured {refer note (i)}
Privately placed non-convertible debentures - 998,95.45
Loans rapayable on demand from banks Secured - 1345,00.00
Cash Credit from banks - 74,98.01
Collateralised Debt Obligation - 74,87.24
Term loans from banks - 5716,45.48
Total - 8220,27.18
Total 269,00,00 12693,65.490

Mote {i): Nature and extent of security for secured borrowings outstanding

Nature and extent of Security created and maintained for secured non-convertible debentures (privately placed) fisted on WDM segment of NSE as per SEBI {Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015
1{A) Nature Privately placed non-convertible secured debentures are fully secured by first pari passu charge by way of registered mortgage on:
i} One of the Cormnpany’s residentia flat and
ii) a) All receivables of the Company arising out of loan and lease transactions

b} All other book debts, trade advances forming part of movable assets of the Company

¢} Any other security as identified by the Company and acceptabie to the debenture trustee
1{B} Extent

The minimum security of 100 % for the Non convertibie debentures outstanding has been maintained.

{ii} Nature of Security for secured term |loans from banks:

Secured tarm loans from banks are secured by a pari-passu charge in favour of the security trustee on:

a) Ali raceivables of the Company arising out of loan, lease transactions and trade advances.

b} All cther book debts.

) Receivables from pass through certificates in which Company has invested.

d) Such other current assets as may be identified by the Company from time te time and accepted by the security trustae.

&) External Commercial borrowings of USD 100 Million from IFC is secured by way of first parri passu charge in favour of IFC on receivables of the Company.



TMF Business Services Limited {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED) (CIN - U45200MH1935PLCOS0444}
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(i} Nature of Security for cash credit and loans repayable on demand:

Cash credit and loans repayable on demand Is secured by & pari-passu charge in favour of the security trustee on:
a) Al receivahles of the Company arising out of loan, lease and trade advances:

b} All other book debts:

¢} Receivables from pass through certificates in which Company has invested; and

d} Such other current assets as may be identified by the Company from time to time and accepted by the security trustee,
{iv) Coltateralised debt obligation represent amount received against loans securitised/direct assignment, which does not meet the criteria for derecognition as per
{v) The Company has utilized all #t's borrowings from Banks & financial Institutions for the purpose they have been borrowed.

{vi} None of the borrowings have been guaranteed by directors or
others.
{vii) Also the Company has not defzulted in repayment of principal and interest.

Details of Non-Convertible debentures {Secured) {X in lakhs)
’ As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 :

From Balance sheet Date

interest Rate Range Amount interest Rate Range Amount
Issued an private placement basis
Repayable on Maturity:
Maturing within 1 Year B.50% to 8.75% 1000,00.00
Total Face Value 1000,00.00
Less: Unamortised borrowing cost 1,04.55
Total Amortised cost 998,95.45
* These NCDs are zero coupon NCDs issued at par value and redeemzble at premium and the amount stated above are grass of premium ot redemption,
Details of Non Cumulative debentures {Unsecured) {X in lakhs)

As at March 33, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

From Balance sheet Date

Interest Rate Range Amount Interest Rate Range Amount
issued on private placement basis
Repayable on Maturity:
Maturing between 3 Years to 5 Years 8.40% to 8.40% 566,31.64
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years 7.15% to 8.85% 1268,73.08
Total Face Value 2235,04,72
Less: Unamortised borrowing cost 270,97.04
Total Amortised cost 1964,07.68
Details of Commerdial Papers {Unsecured) (% in lakhs)

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

from Balance sheet Date

Interest Rate Range Amount interest Rate Range Amount
Repayabie on Maturity:
Maturing within 1 Year 6.70% to 8.60% 3387,00.00
Total Face Value 3387,00.00
Less: Unamortised discounting charges 130,92.55

Total Amortised cost

3256,07.45




TMF Business Services Limited (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED) {CIN - 14452000MH1989PLC030444)
Notes farming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Details of Term Loans from banks {Secured) (% in lakhs)

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
From Balance sheet Date interest Rate Range Amount tnterest Rate Range Amount
1, Repayable on Maturity:
Maturing within 1 Year 7.80% 10 8.97% 2375,00.00
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years 7.40% o 8.88% 255,00.00
Total repayable on maturiy (A) 2630,00.00
2. Repayabie in installments:
i. on gquarterly basis
Maturing within 1 Year 8.20% 1o 8.65% - 2471,21.38
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years 7.71% to 10.00% 3410,67.63
Maturing between 3 Years to 5 Years 7.50%¢t0 8.95% 800,01.07
Subtotal (B} 6681,90.08
ii. on half yearly basis
Maturing within 1 Year 7.75% to 8.40% 713,75.00
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years 7.25% to 8.65% 1078,54.17
Maturing between 3 Years to 5 Years 7.40% to 7.85% 883,33.33
Subtotal {C} 2675,62.50
iii. on yearly basis
Maturing betweean 3 Years to 5 Years R.70% 10 3.70% 200,00.00
Maturing within 1 Year 8.80% to 8.70% 156,66.67
Maturing between 1 yearto 3 Years 8.70% to 8.70% 206,00.00
Subtotal {D) 566,66.67
Total repayable on instaliments {E = B+C+D) 9924,19.25
Total term loans as per contractual terms {F = A+E) 12554,19.25
Less: Unamortised borrowing costs 9,88.67
Total Amortised cost 12544,30.58
Details of External Commercial Borrowings {35D) {% in lakhs)

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
From Balance sheet Date

interest Rate Range Amount interest Rate Range Amount

1. Repayabie on Maturity:
Maturing beyond 5 Years _
Maturing between 1 year 1o 3 Years 8.97% t0 10.07% 822,19.37
Total repayable on maturity 822,19.37
Less: Unamortised borrowing costs 2,78.65
Totai Amortised cost £819,40.72
Details of Collateralised Debt Obligation {Secured) {X in lakhs}

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
From Balance sheet Date

Interest Rate Range Amount interest Rate Range Amount

Maturing beyond S Years
Maturing within 1 Year 6.40% to 8.00% 74,87.24
Total 74,87.24

Less: Unamortised borrowing costs
Total Amortised cost

74,87.24




TMF Business Services Limited {(FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED) (CIN - U45200MH1985PLCO50444)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Details of Term Loans from banks {Unsecured] {% in [akhs)
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

from Balance sheet Date

Interest Rate Range Amount Interest Rate Range Amount
1, Repayable on Maturity:
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years - - 8.40% o0 8.40% 210,00.00
Total repayable on maturiy (A) - - 210,00.00
2. Repayable in Instaliments:
if. on quarterly basis
Maturing between 3 Years to 5 Years - - 8.50% to 8.60% 62,50.00
Maturing between J year to 3 Years - - 8.60% to 8.60% 125,00.00
Maturing within 1 Year - ~ 8.60% to 8.60% 62,50.00
Subtota! (B} - 250,00.00
i. on half yearly hasis
Maturing within 1 Year - - 7.80% to 7.830% 125,00.00
Maturing between 1 yearto 3 Years - - 7.80% to 7.80% 375,00.00
Total repayable in instaliments (€] - 500,00.00
iv. on yearly basis
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years - - Bl0%to 8.10% 500,00.00
Maturing within 1 Year - - 8.10% to 8.10% 500,00.C0
Subtotal (D} - 1000,00.00
Total repayable on installments (E = B+C4D) - 1750,60.00
Total term foans as per contractual terms {F = A+E) - 1960,00.00
Less: Unamortised berrowing costs 30.07
Total Amortised cost - 1959,659.93
Details of Inter corporate deposits {ICDs) (Unsecured) {% in lakhs)}

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

From Balance sheet Date

interest Rate Range Amount Interest Rate Range Amount
Maturing within 1 Year 2.53% to 8.94% 25,900.00 8.39% to 8,39% 300,00.00
Total 265,00,00 300,00.00
Less: Unamortised finance cost - -
Total Amortised ¢cost 269,00.00 300,00.00




TME Business Services Limited {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED] {CIN - U45200MH1985PLC050444)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Details of Loans rapayable on demand from banks (Secured} (X in lakhs)
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
t
From Balance sheet Date interest Rate Range Amount interest Rate Range Amount
Maturing within 1 Year 8.30% to 7.50% 1345,00.00
Total 1345,00.00
Less: Unamortised borrowing costs -
Total Amortised cost 1345,00.00
Details of Cash credit facilities {Secured) {% in lakhs)
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
From Balance sheet Date
ance Interast Rate Range Amount interest Rate Range Amount
Maturing within 1 Year 7.95% to 7.95% 74,58.01
Total 74,98.01
Less: Unamortised borrowing costs -
Total Amaortised cost 74,98.01
Details of Subordinated fabilities in the nature of Tier Il unsecured red bie non-convertible debentures (% in lakhs}
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
from Balance sheet Date
Interest Rate Range Amount Face Value Amount
{ssued on private placement basis
Repayable on Maturity:
Maturing beyond 5 Years 9.95% to 10.25% 550,00.00
Maturing between 3 Years to 5 Years B.35% t0 9.00% 250,00.00
Maturing between 1 yearto 3 Years $.70% to 10.60% - 235,00.00
Maturing within 1 Year 5.85% 1o 10.15% 155,10.00
Total Face Value 1190,10.00
Less: Unamortised borrowing cost 3,24.36

Total Amortised cost

1186,85.64




TMF Business Services Limited {FORMERLY KNGWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LEMITED} {CIN - U45200MH1989PLCO50444)

18. Other financial lfabilities

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{2 in lakhs}

Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
Non-Current
Derivative financial instru-ments - 14,86.64
{refer Note no 184)
Deposits 5,26,38 8,65.25
Cthers financials liabifities - 8,72.47
Taotal 5,26.38 34,24.36
Current
Interest accrued on borrowings - 213,31.53
Deposits 6,31.24 5,40.22
Gthers financials lisbilities 11.48 235,87.24
Payable for assigned receivables - 331,33.97
Yotal 642,72 786,92.96
18.A Derivative financial instruments - March 31 2023

(X in lakhs)
Particulars ;\':123::: Fa.:\;:::: ) AN:;?;::: Fair Value Habilities
Currency derivatives
Forward exchange contracts - - 179,63.75 14,85.64
Subtotal - - 179,63.75 14,86.64
interest rate derivatives
Interest rate swaps 179,63.75 11,06.20 - -
Subtotal 11,06.20 - -
Other derivatives
Cross currency interast rate swaps 538,96.25 85,92.87 - -
Subtotal 85,92.87 - -
Total Derivative Financial Instruments 96,99.07 14,86.64
Cash flow hedging:
Forward exchange contracts - - 178,63.75 14,86.64
Cross currency interest rate swaps 538,96.25 85,92.87 - -
Interest rate swaps 1759,63.75 11,06.2¢ - -
Subtotal $6,99.07 179,63.75 14,86.64
Total Berivative Financial Instruments 96,99.07 14,86.64
Refer Note 37 on Financial Risk Management for maturity analysis of Derivative financial fiabilities at March 31, 2023,

19. Provisions

{% in lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023

Non current
Provision for employee benefits 2,11 6,94.31
Provision for indirect taxes - 68,77.85
Other - 1,07.93
Total 211 76,80.09
Current
Provision for employee benefits . 1,71.74

Total

1,71.74
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TMF Business Services Limited (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE UMITED) {CIN - U45200MH1989PLCO50544)

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(X in lakhs})
. Eor the year ended For the year ended
22. Revenue from Operation March 31 March 31
2024 2023 .
{a)] Sale of Service 50,4046 49,58.85
50,40.45 49,58.85
{b) Other operating revenues 1.86 -
Total 50,42.32 49,58.85
(Xin lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
22A. Other]
#A. Other Income March 31 March 31
2024 2023
{a} InterestIncome 1.58 3099,58.52
(b) Balances written back - 87183
{c} Dividend income . 3,77.37
{d}  Other fees and service charges - 172,79.65
{e} Miscellaneous income 5,26.90 333,76.62
Total 5,28.48 3618,64.95
{X in takhs}
For the year ended For the year ended
23. fi
Employee benefits expenses March 31 March 31
2024 2023
(2) Salaries 71.39 270,96.39
(b} Contribution to provident and other funds 3.49 16,06.75
{c) Staff welfare expenses - 16,82,67
Total 74.88 303,91.81
{X in lakhs)
. For the year ended For the year ended
. F
2 nance Costs March 31 March 31
2024 2023
(a) Interest on borrowings 25,26.85 1362,47.55
(b} Interest on debt securities - 540,14.82
{e} Interest on subordinated liabilities - 137,75.02
{d) Interest expense on lease liability - 5,44.85
{e) Otherfinance charges . 3442
Total 25,26,85 2047,16.66
{%iIn fakhs}
. . ips For the year ended For the year ended
25, t |
impairment on financial instruments and other assets March 31 March 31
2024 2023
Loans measured amortised cost
(a} Allowance for loan losses - {106,36.89)
(b} Loans written off - 1628,20.14
(net of recoveries Nil for the year ended March 31, 2024; X 143,65.68
lakhs for year ended March 31, 2023)
Loans measured fair value through other comprehensive income
{a} Allowance for loan losses-FVOC - 179,359.99
Other assets
{a) Allowance for doubtful assets 1,25.88 {12,74.47)
{b} Balances written off 68,66 3.69
Total 1,94.54 1688,52.46




TIMF Business Services Limited (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED] {CIN - U45200MH1989PLCOS0444)

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(X in lakhs}
For the year ended For the year ended
26. Other expenses March 31 March 21
2024 2023
{a) Rant, taxes and energy costs 5.60 13,37.61
{b} Repairs and meaintenance 1.04 3,72.23
{c} CSRexpense - 60,10
{d) Communication costs - 5,59.75
{2} Printing end stationery Q.60 2,19.50
(f}  Advertisement and publicity 0.34 5,37.03
(g} Director's fees, allowances and expenses 15,03 60,30
(h) Auditor's fees and expensas 2492 1,02.17
{Refer Note i)
(i} Legaland professional charges 72.58 52,98.91
(i} Insurance 0.11 55,28.82
{k} Commission - 65,58.87
{l} Service provider fees 60.86 222,53.78
m} Net loss on derecagnition of property, plant and equipment 4,73.75 22.45
{n} Travelling and conveyance 4,96 11,9992
{o} Cenvat credit reversal " 49,41,74
{p) Others expenses 16.26 118,05.03
Total 6,77.05 610,58.32
{Z In lakhs)
i e . . R for the year ended For the year ended
{i} Auditors’ remuneration (excluding taxes): March 3t March 31
2024 2023
(a) Asauditors - statutory audit 10.00 74.53
(b} Taxaudit 11.50 10.00
{c) For other services B 15.28
{d) Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses 3.42 2.39
Total 24,92 1,02.17
{ii} Corporate social responsibility
(% in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31 March 31
2024 2023
Amount required to be spent by the company during the year - 256.91
Amount of expenditure incurred - 1,79.83
Excess/{Shortfali) at the end of the year - 33.1¢
Total of previous years excess/(shortfall} - (1,19.73}

Details of related party transactions

i. Contribution to a trust controlled by the company in relation to CSR expenditure as per
relevant Accounting Standard

ii. Any other, please specify

Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual obligation

Particulars

i. Provision at the beginning of the year

ii. Additionai provision made during the year

iii, Provision reversed during the year

iv. Provision resuited in expenditure during the year
v. Provision at the and of the year



TMF Business Services Limited (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED} {CIN - U45200MH19B89PLCO50445)
Noates forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

27 The Board of Directors has, at its meeting held on October 3, 2022, approved a Scheme of Arrangsment (“the Scheme”) under Section 230 to Section
232 read with Section 66 of the Act, as amended between the Company and Tata Motors Finance Solutions Limited {its fellow subsidiary} and their
respective shareholders for:

a,.Demerger of the Non-Banking Finance related business ("NBFC Undertaking™) of the Company through the Scheme, 1o be filed before the Hon'ble
National Company Law Tribunal pursuant to Section 230 ta Section 232 of the Act, as amended;

h. Reduction of securities premium, other reserves available with the Company after giving effect to the demerger and equity share capital (by reducing
the face value of paid-up equity shares of the Company) with a corresponding adjustment against negative balance in demerger reserve arising on

Appointed date for the scheme is April 1, 2023, The Reserve Bank of india gave its no-objection for the Scheme, The Scheme has been appraved by
Hon'ble Nationai Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai bench on May 12, 2023, for which the final order was received on June 15, 2023. The Company
received alf other necessary regulatory approvals and the scheme is effective fram June 30, 2023.

The Company accounted for transfer of net assets of Rs, 957,48.32 lakhs in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India with a
corresponding debit to Demerger Reserve.

Net Assets of NBFC underking are as follows:

(% in lakhs)
Particulars At April 01, 2023
2022
Assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3224,88.14
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 61,41.91
Derivative financial insiruments 96,99,07
Receivable
i. Trade receivables 23,96.1%
ii. Other receivables 2,37.58
Loans 23756,33.22
Investments 1440,77.37
Qther financial assets 796,12.06
29402,86,50
Non-Financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net) 220,47.12
Property, plant and equipment 85,07.25
Cther intangible assets 2,24.14
COther non-financial assets 118,79.42
436,57.93
Assets held for sale 170,63.56
Total assets {A) 30010,07.99
Liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments 14,86.64
Payables
i. Trade payables
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 10,67.67
(b} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micre enterprises and smail enterprises 163.51.93
ii. Other payables
{a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and srmall efterprises -
(b} total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smzll enterprises 104,29.94
Debt securities 6219,10.58
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 16819,21.31
Subordinated liabilities 1311,67.23
Cther financial liabilities 791,55.08
25464,94,38
Non-financial tiabilities )
Provisions 90,73.63
Cther non-financial liabifities 62,3671
153,10.34
Equity -
instruments entirely equity in nature 1348,00.00
Other eguity 2086,54.95
3434,54.95
Total lizhilities and equity (B) 29052,59.67
Net assets {C] = (A} - (B} 957,48.32

In accordance with the Scheme, Securities premium of Rs.49,36.55 iakhs (post leaving an amount of Rs. 85.98 lzkhs to have the paid-up value to
nearest 10 pafsa), capital redemption reserve of Rs. 0.00 lakhs {less than Rs. 100/-), Capital reserve of Rs. 2,35.80 lakhs , General reserve of Rs.22.07
lakhs and equity share capital of Rs.94243.25 lakhs has been reduced against debit balance of Rs.957,48.32 iakhs in Demerger Reserve and
Rs.36,88.34 takhs in retained carnings.

Tata Motors Finance solutions Limited (YMFSL) has issed 32,68,89,441 nurber of eguities share of face value of Rs. 100 each as consideration of NBFG
undertaking to the shareholders of the Company.

Due to fransfer of the NBFC undertaking as mentioend above, current year fingures are not comparable with previous year's figures. For the year ended
March 31, 2023, financial statements were presented in accordance with Division Il - Schedule 4l to the Companies Act, 2013 for NBFC that is required
to comply with ind As. For the year ended March 31, 2024, financial statements are presented in accordance with Division Il - Schedufe 1l to the
Companies Act, 2013.
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TMF Business Services Limited {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANGE LIMITED) (CIN - U45200MH1389PLCOS0444}
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per equity share are computed in accordance with ind AS 33 — Earnings per share. Basic earnings per equity share are computed by dividing the
net profit attributable to equity holdars of Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year {inciuding Crdinary shares that will be issued
upoen conversion of a mandatorily convertible instrument).

Diluted EPS is caleulated by dividing the net profita Wributable to equity halders of Company by lhe weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus
the waighted averaga number of equity shares that would be issusd on the conversion of amandatorily convertible instrumeant,

The following tabie sets forth, for the years indicated, the computation of earnings per share.

29.

30,

-

(% in jakbs)

particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31 March 33
2024 2023

Basic
Weighted average no. of equity shares outstanding 9,79,65,969 8,88,43,865
Net profit /(Loss) attributable to equity share holders {Refar Note 1) {10,78.11} (1185,67.32}
Basic earnings per share (2} {1.10) {131.20)
Dilyted
Weighted average no. of equity shares outstanding 9,79,65,959 888438,65.00
Net profit{loss) attributable to equity share holders (Refer Note 1} (16,78.21) {1165,67.32}
Dituted earnings per share (3 ) {2.10) {131.20)
Face value parshare {X } 3.80 100
Nota 1 - Cafetdation of net profit attributable to equity share holders
Profit after tax as per staternent of profit and loss (10,78.11} {1033,15.07)
l.ass -~ Distribution made {o holders of perpetual instruments - (132,48.25}
Net profit/ {Loss) attributable to equity share holders {10,78.11} {1165,67.32}

Segment reporting

The Company s primarly engaged in the Post demarger of NBFC undertaking during the guarter, the Company Is now primarily engaged in the business of operating lease
and the operations being only in India, the disclosure requirements of Ind AS - 108 Segment Reporting are not applicable.

Contingent liabilities and commitments ;-

Cantingent liabifities to the extent not provided for:

a) Claims against the Company not acknowlecged as debts:

2

{Tin lakhs}
Particuisrs As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
In respect of consumer disputes - 28,07.83
in respect of bonus under the Paymant of Bonus (Amendmiant) Act, 2015 - -
Total - 28,07.83
b} Bank guarantee for which the Company is contingently liables
[ in lakhs}
Particuiars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
In respect of guarantees given by banks for Income tax matters 99.00 29.00

The Company's pending litigations comprise of dalms against the Cormpany primarily by the customers and progeadings pending with Income Tax and other authorities. The
Cempany has reviewed all its pending litigations and procsedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed the contingent liabilities where
applicable, in its financiat statements. The amount of provisions / contingent fiabilities is based on management's estimate, and no sighificant fabllity is expected to arise out of
the same.

o) The Hon'ble Supreme Court of India (*SC”) by thelr order dated February 28, 2019, set out the principies based on which afiowances paid to the employees should be
identified for inclusion In basic wages for the purposes of computation of Provident Fund contribution. Subsequently, a review petition against this dacision has been filed and
is pending before the SC for dispesal.

Panding the outcome of the review petition and directions from the EPFO, the impact for past periods, If any, is not ascertainable and consequently no financial effect has
besn provided for in the financial statements. As a matter of caution, the Company has complied with the aforesaid order on a prospective basis from the date of the SC
order. The Company will reassess the position on receiving any further update of clarity on the subject.

Commitments:

Capital commitments

Estimated amount of contrasts ramaining to be executed on capital account and nat provided for 4 Ml (a5 at Mareh 31, 2023: T 50,85 lakhs).
Bthar commitmants

Lean commitment towards vehicie financing T Nl {as at March 31, 2023: ¥ 27.09 {akhs).



TMF Business Services Limited (FORMERLY XNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED) (CEN - U45200H1985PLCO50444)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
31, Related party disclosures
1 Related parties and their refationship (as defined under IndAS-24 Refsted Party Disclosures
A Parties where the control exists:
Ultimate Hokiing Company: Tata Motors Limited
Holding Company: TMF Holdings Limited

B Other Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year end:
{if) Feflow subsidiaries, associates and Jolnt arrangements within the Group
Tata Motors Finance Limited {formerly known as Tata Motors Finance Salutions Limited)
TML Business Services Limitet (formerly known as Concorde Motors {India} Limited)

{iii} Tata Sons and its subsidiaries and Joint arrangements
Tata Sons Private Limited

€ Key Management personnel ;
Mr. Samrat Gupta - Managing Director & Chiof Executive Offiser {upto June 30 2023)
Mr. Naseer Munjee - Chalrman & Independent Director
Ms. Vedika Bhandarkar - Independent Directar
Mrs, Varsha Purandare - Independent Director
Mr. NV, Sivakurmar - Independert Director
Mr. Shyam Mani - Non-Executive Director (upto 1st August, 2023}
Mr. Dhiman Gupta- Nen-Executive Director (w.e.f May 24, 2022)
Mr. Vinu Nair - Managar (from 1st July 2023)
Ms. Ridhi Gangar-Chiefl Financial Officer (upta June 30 2023)
Mr. Uday Uchil -Chief Financial Officer (from: 1st July 2023}
Mr. P. B. Balaji - Non-Executive Diractor
Mr, Vinay Lawannis - Company Secratary (upto June 30, 2023)
Mr. Neara] Dweivedi - Company Secretary {from 1st July 2023)
Mr. P. 8. Jayakumar - independent Directar {upto July 9, 2023}

Tre following table summarizes related-party transactions for the year ended March 31, 2024 and halances as at March 31, 2024

{% in lakhs}
Particular Ultimate Hoiding  Holding Company  Other Related Parties Total
a) Transactions during the year
Cther income 35.58 - - 35.58
Expenses for other services {incl. reimbursement of expenses) 2.25 - §5.88 98.13
interest Expenses - 25,14.04 12,81 25,26.85
Rent Expenses (refer note (i) ) - 2.16 - 2.18
Other Expenses - - 7.68 7.68
Loans and advances taken - 372,00,00 262,0G,00 £34,00.00
Leans and advances repaid - 402,05.16 262,00.00 664,05.16

(X ir takhs)
bj Closing balance Ultimate Holding  Holding Company  Other Related Parties Total
Other receivables 35.58 - - 35.58
Payable - loans and advacnes - 269,00.00 - 269,00.00
Other payahles 2.03 0.28 1,67.17 1,65.48

(X in lakhs)
¢} Max baiance during the year Ultimate Holtting  Helding Company  Other Related Parties Total
Cther Receivables 35,58 - - 3558
Payable - loans and Advacnes - 398,05.16 . 399,05.16
Other Payables 203 1.56 2,20.04 2,23.63
The following table summarizes related-party transactions for the year ended March 31, 2023 and balances as at March 31, 2023

{2 in lakhs}
Particular Ultimate Holding  Holding Company  Other Related Parties Fotal
a3 Transactions during the year
Income related to financing activities 2,39.68 - - 2,39.68
Interest income on Joans and investments 7,47.28 2,18.61 - 9,65.8%
Dividend income - - 49,59 48,59
Rent Income - - 3,58.12 35812
Service charges income 3¢.00 1,10.64 88,56.21 90,05.85
Amount received towards reimbursement of expenses - - 3.18 318
Expenses for ather services (incl. reimbursement of expenises) 2,46.98 - 38,22.77 40,69.7%
Interest Expenses - £3,19.50 - 83,1950
Rent Expenses {refer note (i} ) 23,15 3,67.08 - 3,00.23
COther Expenses - 3697 73.11 1,16.08
Recoveries fram employes benefit trust - - 5,20.43 520.43
Contributions paid to employee benefit trust - - 4,83.21 4,83.21
Loans and advances taken - 1800,00.00 - 1908,00.00
Loans and advances repaig - 1600,06.00 - 1606,00.60
Loans and advances given 1470,00.00 355,00,00 - 1825,00.00
Loans and advances recovered 1470,00.00 355,00,60 - 1825,00.00
Issue of share capital (including share premium) - 706,36.46 - 700,36,45

Purchase of fixed assets 9,74.65 - - 9,74.65



TME Business Services Limited {FORMERLY XNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE EIMITED) (TIN - U4S200MHIIRIPLLCSDA44])
Notes ferming part of financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(% in lakhs}
B} Clasing balance Ultimate Halding  Holding Company  Other Related Parties Total
Receivable - loans and Advances - Purchase of recelvable 20.00 - - 20.00
Receivable - loans and Advances - Finance fease 10.31 - - 10.31
Other Receivables £5.49 10.75 2,20.38 3,16.62
Payables - borrowings & debt securities - 900,00.00 - 800,00.00
Other Payables 1,48.52 30,54.9% 37,86.27 £9,89.78
Interest income accrued on Finance izase 001 - - 0.0t

{%in lakhs}

£} Max balance during the year Ultimate Helding  Holding Company  Othes Related Parties Total
Amount recetvabie othars 50.35 20.78 29,4383 30,1494
Amount receivable in respest of security deposit 7.26 - - 7.26
Incentive raceivable 10,54.88 - - 10,54.88
Purchase of receivable 28.07 - - 29.07
Finance leass recelvable 1032 - - 10.32
Accrued Interest income - Finance lease receivable 8.01 - . 0.01
Amount payable in respect of Subordinate abilities - £00,00.00 - £00,00.00
Amount payable athers 1,42.45 42,14.93 85,52.63. 129,10.02
Amount payable in respect of ICD - £00,00.00 - 800,00.00
d} Intra Group Exposure Ultimate Holding  Holding Company  Other Related Parties Total
Total amount of Intra - Group exposuras 309,07.69
Total amount of top 20 intra ~ Group exposures 309,07.68
% of intra group exposures 1o total exposures of the NBFC on borrowers/customers 1.15%

Nota:

Company had entered into various lease rent agreement with Ultimate Holding Company as a lessee which meels the Lease definition as per ind AS 116, Accordingly, the
Company recognized the Right of use assets and corresponding lease liability. Rent expenses includes NILL (¥ 23.15 lakhs for year March 31, 2023} which has been

adjusted against the outstanding lsase fiability in accordance with Ind AS 116.

{}IE) Teansactions and balances with Key Management personnel and their relatives

{2 in lakhs}
a) Transactions during the year As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
Distributions made for Instruments entirely equity in nature - 10.25
interest paid on unsecured parpatual debentures - 291
(R in lzkhs)
b} Balances as at As at March 31 Ag at March 31
2024 2023
Net payable - Unsecured perpstual debentures - 13000
{c) Key ent personnel rem
(% in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31 As at Mareh 31
2024 2023
Shart term employes benefits {refer notes below) - 7,58.43
Totai . 7,58.43

Notes:

i} Expenses towards provision for gratuity and leave encashment which are determined on actuarial basis at an overall Company level are not included in the above information.
(i} Includes siting fees paid to independent directors 3 16.08 laxhs and € 80.30 fakns for the period ended ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 respectively.



TAMF Business Services Limited (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMETED) {CIN - Li45200MH1988PLCO50444)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

32. Employee benefit

a)

Definad contribution plans

Superannuation fund

The Compeny makes contribution towards superannuation fund, a defined contribution retirement plan for qualifying employses, The

Superannuation Fund is administered by the Trustees of the Tata Motors Limited Superannuation Fund. The Company is fiable fo pay to the

superannuation fund to the extent of the amount coniributed, The Company recognise such contribution as an expense in the year of contribution,
The amounts eontributed in current year of ¥ 0.71 Jakhs (previous year ¥ 82.86 lakhs) has been recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.,

Gratulty

The gratuily defined benefit plan is a funded plan and the Company makes contributions to the Tata Motors Finance Limited Employess Gratuity
Trust for funding the defined benefit gratuity plan for qualifying employees. The plan provides for 2 lump sum payment to vested employees at
retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amaunt eqguivalent to 15 to 3G days salary payable for each

cormpleted year of service. Vesting ocours upon compietion of five years of service.

The following table sets out the funded and unfunded status and the amounts recegnised in the financlal statements for the gratuity plans

3} Changes in defined benefit obligations
{X in lakhs)
Particufars Asat March3l  Asat March 31
2024 023
Defined benefit obligation, beginning of the year 45,19.16 47,58.35
Current service cost 038 4,49.42
Irterest cost 021 3,15.61
Remeasurement (gains) / losses
Actuarial (gain) fosses arising from change in financial assumptions .23 .72
Agtuarial (gain} flosses arising frem change in demographic assumptions 0.81 (50.20}
Actuzrial (gain) flosses arlsing from change in experfence adjustments 163 (3,37.34}
Transferscut on account of demerger {45,16.18)
Benefits paid from plan assets - {8,26.40)
Defined benefit obligation, end of the year 6.54 45,19.16
b} Chanigesin plan assats
(% in lakhs]
Particulars AsatMarch31  AsatMarch 31
. 2024 2023
Fair valus of plan assets, beginning of the year 45,7575 42,7514
Interest Income on plan assets 9.2z 2,98.45
Remeasurement gains / {lusses)
Returm on plan assets, {excluding amount inciuded in net Interest expense) 3.30 1,45.38
Transfer.out on account of demerger {45,72.73} -
Employar's contribution - 4,83.21
Benefits paid - {6,26.40)
Fair value of plan assets, end of the year £.54 45,75.75
¢) Amaunt recognised in balance sheet consists of;
(% in akhs)
Particulars Asatiarch3l  As at March 31
2024 2023
Prasent value of defined benefit obligation (6.54) {45,18.16}
Fair vaiue of plan assets 6.54 45,7575
Net Assets/ (LiabiFity) 0.00 56.59
d} Amount recagnised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
{2in fakhs}
Particulars AsatMarch3t  AsastMarch3:
2024 2423
Current Service Cost 0.58 4,494
Interest an Defined Benefit Obligations (Nef) {0.01} 17.16
Net Charge to the Statement of Profit and Loss 3,57 4,66.58
e} Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive kncome(0Cl} for the year:
{Xin lakhs)
Particutars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liabllity:
Returs on plan assets excluding amourts included in interest expenses{income;} {2.30) {1,45.35)
Actuerial (gain} /losses arising from change in demographic assumptions 091 (50.20
Actuariet (gain) /losses arising from change in financial assumptions 0.23 9.72
Actuarial (gain) /losses arising from change in experience adjustments 1.63 3,37.34)
Net impact on the other comprehensive income before tax (0.53} {5,23.17)




TRF Business Services Limited [FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED) (CEN - U45200MH1989PLC050444)
Notes farming part of financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2024

f} The fair value of Company’'s Gratuity plan asset by category

{ZIn lakhs}
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 3%
2024 2023
Asset Category
- Government securites {quoted) - -
- Debt instruments (quoted} - -
- Debt instruments {unguoted) - -
- Bquity shares {quoted) - -
- Insurer Managed Funds (unguoted} - 100% 100%
g} The assumptions used in accounting for the gratuity plans are set out below:
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
Discount rate 7.00% 7.20%
Expected return on plan assets 7.20% 7.10%
Salary Escalation rate
7.00% 8% for first year,
7% theresfrer
Mortality Tables indian Assured Lives mortality {2006~

08) Uit

{a) Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated tarm of the

ohligations.

tb The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take into account the inflation, seniority, prometion and other refevant

factors.

k) The matutity profile of definad benefit ohligation are set out below:

% In {akhs}
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
Within next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 0.01 5,00.48
Between 1 and 5 years 0.08 23,31.89
Betwsen 5 and 9 years 0.48 33,26.30
il Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions: (% in lakhs}
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
100 bps increase in discount rate (1.27) {2,74.42}
100 bps decreass in discount rate 1.30 3,07.75
100 bps increase in salary escalation rate 129 3,04.76
100 bps decrease in salary escaiation rate {1.08) (2,76.50}

The ghove sansitivity analyses ars based on a thange in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. in practice, this is unfikely
1o ooour, andg changes in some of the assumptions may be comelated. When caloulating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to
significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obfigation calcutated with the projected unit credit method
at the end of the reparting periad) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit Rabfity recognised In the Balance Sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the previous year.

Weighted Average Durstion of Dafined Benefit ohligation:

Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
The weighted average duration of the defined beneflt obligation 1328 6,75 years
¥} The best estimate of the expected Contribution for the next yeur
(% jn fakhs
Particulars As at March 31
2024
Expected contribution to the fundad gratuity plans in next financial yvear. 1.11

1) Risk Exposure
Through its gratuity defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below

tavestment Risk: if future investment returns on assets ara jower than assumed in valuation, the scheme’s assets will ba lower, and the funding level higher,
than axpected.

Change in bond yields: A decrease in vislds will increase plan fiabilities, afthough this will be partially offset by an increase in the valye of the plans’ bond
holdings.



TMF Business Services Limited (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED) {CIN - U45200MH1989PLCO50444)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

33. Fair value measurements
Financial {nstruments by categories

The following table presents the carrying amounts of each category of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2024

(X in lakhs)
Derlvative Derivative
Financial assets Amortised cost FVTOCH FVTPL instruments in instruments - Total carrying
hedging not in hedging value
relationship relationship
Current
{a) Trade receivables 8,37.09 - - - - 8,37.02
{b) Cash and cash equivalenis 3,37.60 - - - - 3,37.50
(c) Bank Balances 95.00 - - - - 99.00
(d} Other financial assets 4,42.29 - - - - 4,42,29
Totat 17,15.98 - - - - 17,15.98
Derivative Derivative
Financial fiabilities Amortisett Cost FUTOCH FVTPL instruments in nstruments - Total carrying
hedging not in hedging value
relationship relationship
Non Current
(s} ©Other financigd Habilities 526,38 - - - - 526.38
Current
(28) Borrowings 269,00.0G - - - - 269,00.00
{c}) Trade payables 2,05.87 - - - - 2,65.87
{d} Other financial liabilities 6,42.72 . . - - 6,42.72
Total 282,74.97 - - - - 282,74.97
The following table presents the carrying amoumts of each category of financlal assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2023
(% in lakhs}
Derivative Derivative
Financial asscts Amortised cost FVTOCH FVTPL instruments in fnstruments  Total carrying .
hedging not in hedging vajue
relationship refationship
Non Current
(a) Investments 799,35.15 129,96.52 185,37.62 - - 1114,65.29
{b} Loans ) 6252,51.41 - - - - 6252,81.41
{c) Bank balances 53,18.77 - - - - 53,18.77
(d} Other financial assets 28,66.79 - - - 96,99.07 126,65.86
Current
() Investments 109,46.31 . 216,61.77 - - 326,08.08
(&)Y Loans 4722,95.88 12740,41.93 - - - 17463,41.81
{c} Trade receivables 29,97.01 - - - - 29,97.01
{(d) Cash and cash equivalents 3227,01.92 - - - - 3227,01.92
(e} Bank balances 8,23.14 - - - - 8,23.14
(f) Cther financial assets 768,82.81 - - - - 768,82.81
Tetal 16041,63.12 12870,38.45 401,5%.39 - 96,99.67 28411,00.10
Derivative Dearivative
Financiat liabifities Amortised Cast FYTOC! FUTPL Instruments in fhstruments - Total carrying
hedging not in hedging value
relationship relationship
Non Current
(8} Borrowings 11955,38.88 - - - - 11955,38.88
{b} Lease Liabilities £8,87.40 - - - - 68,87.40
{c) Other financial liabilities 19,37.72 - - - 14,86.64 34,2436
Current
(@) Borrowings 12693,65.40 - B - - 12693,65.40
(b} Lease Liabilittes 13,62.24 . - - - 13,62.24
(¢} Trade payables 217,12,58 - - - - 217,22.98
{d) Other financial liabilities 786,92.96 - - - - 785,92.96
Total 25754,97.58 - - - 14,86.54 25769,84.22




TMF Business Servicas Limited (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED} (CIN - U45206MH1985PLC050444)
Notes forming part of financiai statements for the year ended March 31,2024

Fair vaiue hierarchy
Sat out belew, is a comparison by ciass of carrying amounts and fair vaiue of the Company's financial assets/liabilities, other than those with the carrying amounts

that are reascnable approximations of fair values:

{% in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2023
Carrying value Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Lavel 3 Total
financial assets measured at fair value
Ron Current
(a) investments 315,34.14 315,34.14 77,28.16 - 233,04.98 315,34.14
(b) Otner financial assats- 96,99.07 96,99.07 . 56,99.07 . 96,99.07
Derivative instruments
Current
{2) invesiments 216,61.77 216,61.77 216,61.77 - - 216,61.77
{b] Loans 12740,41.93 12740,41.93 ~ - 12749,41.93 12740,41.83
Total 133689,36.91 13369,36.91 293,90.92 96,99.07 12978,46.91 13369,36.91
Particulars As at March 33, 2023
Carrying value Fair value {ovel 1 Leval 2 Levei 3 Total
Financial assets measured at amortised cost for which fair value is disclosed
{a) Loans current and Non current 11015,91.29 11124,36.83 - - 11124,36.83 11124,36.83
Total 11015,91.29 11124,36.83 - - 11124,36.83 11124,36.83
Particulars As at Masch 31, 2023
Cargying value Fair value Leveil Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial liabilities measured at fair vaiue
(a) Cther financial assets- 14,86.64 14,86.64 . 14,86.64 . 14,86.64
Derivative instruments
14,86.64 14,86.64 - 14,86.64 - 14,86,64
Particulars As at March 31, 2022
Carrying value Fair vaiue Level 1 Levef 2 Level 3 Total
Financiat liabiiities measured at amortised cost for which fair vatue is disclosed
(a) Borrowings Current and Non current 4349,57.60 4337,41.53 - 4337,41,53 ' - 4337,41,53
Total 4349,57.60 4337,41.53 - 4337,41.53 - 4337,41.53

1. Quoted prices in an active market {Level 1): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities, This category consists of gquoted equity sharas and mutual fund investments,

2. Valuation techniques with observable inputs (Level 2): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabifitles, measured using inputs other than quoted
prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.8; as prices) or indirectly {i.e; derived fram prices). This tevel of hierarchy
include Company's over-the-counter (OTC) derivative contracts.

3, Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs {Level 3): This level of hierarchy inciudes financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs that are
not based on cbservable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using & valuation model based on assumptions that are
neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrumertt nor are they based on avaitable market data. This level of hierarchy
include investments in certain unquoted equity shares.

There has been no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3 during the year ended March 31,2024 and March 31, 2023.

Valuation technique used to determine fair value of financial instruments

(a) Derivatives instruments are fair valued using market cbservable rates and published prices together with forecast cash flow information where applicable are
classified in level 2. The fair value {i.e. Market to Market) of the derivative instruments is provided by independent third party exiernal valuer (i.e. reputed
panksfinancial institution).

{b) The fair value of loans arising from financing activities has been estimated by discounting expected cash flows using rates at which loans of similar credit quality

and maturity would be made and internal assumptions such as expected credit losses and estimated collateral value as at March 31, 2024 ang March 31, 2023,

Since significant unobservable inputs are applied in measuring the fair value of loans arising from finance activities are classified in Level 3.

{c} The fair value of borrowings is estimated by discounting expecied future cash flows, using a discount rate equivalent to the risk-free rate of return, adjusted for
the credit spread considered by the lenders for instruments of similar maturity and credit quality are classified in level 2.

{c} The fair value of the long term borrowings carrying floating-rate of interest is not impacted due to interest rate changes and will not be significantly different from
their carrying amounts.

{e} Costs of certain unguoted equity instruments has been considered as an appropriate estimate of fair value because of a wide range of possible fair value
measurements and cost represents the best estimate of fair value within that range. These investments in equity instruments are not held for trading. Instead,
they are held for medium or fong term strategic purpose. Upon the application of Ind AS 108, the Company has chosen to designate thesa investments in equity
instruments at FYTOCI as the directors believes this provides a more meaningful presentation for medium or long term strategic investments, than reflecting
changes in fair value immediately in profit or loss,



TMF Business Services Lirnited (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED] (CIN - U45200MHIS8IPLCOS0444)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Certain unquoted equity instruments clasified as Level 3 are fair valued by independent third party valuer using the Comparable Company Msthod/Approach
{CCM). Since significant uncbservable inputs ars applied in measuring the fair value they are classified in Level 3. Increase or decrease In multiple will result in
increase or decrease in valuation.

Management uses its best judgment in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. However, there are infierent limitations in any estimation technique.
Therefore, for substantially ail financial instruments, the fair value estimates presented above are not necessarily indicative of ail the amounts that the Company
could have realised or paid in sale transactions as of respective dates. As such, the fair value of the financial instruments subsequent to the respective reporting
dates may be different from the amounts reported at each year end.

Fair value of financial assets/liabilities measured at amortised cost

=

The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabifities other than those disclosed in table above are considered to be the same as their fair values due
to the short term maturities of instruments or no material differences in the values.

Reconciliation of level 3 financial asset measured at fair value is as below :

(X in lakhs)

Particulars For the period For the pericd

ended March 31 ended March 31

2024 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year 12978,46.91 12575,81.48
Transferred Pursuant to Common Control (12978,46.91} -
transaction- Refer note 27
Additiens during the year - 3530,26.85
Mark to Market (foss)/gain recognized in OCI - {251,54.59)
Mark ta Market gain recognized in P&L - 6,41.47
Realised during the year - (2883,48.30)
Balance at the end of the year - 12978,46.91

34, Company as a Lessee
The Company has leases for the office premises at its PAN India branches, remted yards for repossessed vehicles and for other equipments like Gensets. With
the exception of short-term |eases and leases of low-value underlying assets, each lease is reflected on the balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and z lease
lizbility. Varizble lease payments which do not depend on an index or a rate {such as lease payments based on a percentage of revenue) are excluded from the
initial measurement of the iease labllity and asset, The Campany classifies its right-of-use assets in a consistent manner to its property, plant and equipment
{refer Note 5).
Leases of rented offices are generally limited to a lease term of 2 to 10 years, Leases of rented vards generally have a lease term ranging from 2 years to 7
years.
Each lease generally imposes a restriction that, unless there is a contractual right for the Company to sublet the asset to another party, the right-of-use asset can
only be used by the Company.

Set out below, are the carrying amounts of the Company's right-of-use assets and lease labilities and the movements during the vear:

{X in lakhs}
For the year ended March 31, 2024 For the year ended March 31, 2023
. Right-of-use Other financials Other financials
Particulars N , I
assets liabilities Right-of-use assets [tabifities
Buildings Lease Liabilities " Buildings Lease Liabilities
(Audited) {Audited) {Audited) {Audited)
Batance at the beginning of the year 73,8270 82,49.64 66,17.53 72,09.09
Transferred Pursuant to Common Control {73,92.70) {82,49.84)
transaction- Refer note 27
Additions . - 24,94,7¢ 24,94.70
Deletions - - {1,73.75) {56.62)
Depreciation expense - - {15,45.78} .
Interest expense - - - 6,44.85
Payments - - - (20,42.38}
Balanced at the end of the year - - 73,92.70 82,49.64

When measuring the lease labilities for leases that were classified as operating leases, the Company discounted lease payments using its incremental
borrowing rate.

Refer Note 37 on Financial Risk Management for maturity analysis of lease liabilities at March 31, 2023.

{Z in lakhs)

Set out below, are the amounts recognised in profit and loss For the year ended  For the year ended
Mareh 31 March 31
2024 2023

Depreciation expense of right-of-Use assets - 15,45.78
Interest expense on lease fiabilitles - 5,44.85
Rent expense- Short term leases - 5,68.50
Leases of low value assets - 3.68

Variable lease payments (not being linked to - -
any index or rate) -



TMF Business Services Limited [FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED) {CIN - U45200MH1989PLC0S0444)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

35. Finance Lease receivables
‘The Company had entered into igase arrangements as a lessor that are considered to be finance leases. The Company was leases vehicies on finance lease
and as it was transfer's substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets they are classified as finance leases. The lease term for these leases
ranges from 2 to 7 years.
The maturity analysis of lease receivables, including the undiscounted lease payments to be received are as follows:

{Xin lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 . 2023

t.ess than 1 year - 35,14.04
1-2 years - 25,6094
2.3 years - 17,32.03
3-4 years - 14,94.96
45 years - 3,72.91
miare than § years - -
‘Total undiscounted lease payments receivable - 97,41.88
Unearned finance income - {15,87.38)
Net investment in the lease - 81,54,50

Further, the Company had recognized following amounts in statement of profit and loss during the year

X in lakhs!
N Fortheyear  Forthe year ended
Particulars ended March 31 March 31
204 2023
Finance income on the net invesiment in the - 8,31.04
lease
36, Reconciliation of Movement in Borrowings to cash flows from financing activities
{Xin lakhs)
As at April 01, Transferred
. 2023 Pursuant to Exchange Amortisation / EIR  As at March 31,
Particulars Comman Control Cash flows {net} X -
. difference adjustments 2624
transaction- Refer
note 27
Short«term borrowings 4801,07.45 {4502,02.29) {30,05.16) - - 26,500.00
{ong-tertn borrowings 15747,96.83 (159747,96.83} - - - -
Total 24649,04.28 (24349,99.12! {30,05.16) - - 269,00,00
{Xin j2khs}
Particulars As at April 03, 2022 Cash flows (net} E.xchange Amnr.tisation JEIR  As at March 31,
difference adjustments 2023
Short-term borrowings 8110,00.00 {3078,00.00) - {130,92.58) 4901,07.45
Long-term borrowings 20135 82.62 (458,08.78} 4,21.83 66,01.11 19747,86.83
Total 2824582562 {3538,08.73) 4,21.83 {64,91.44) 24649,04.28

Note: Debt securities inciudes commaercial papers and zero coupon debentures for which the discounting charges paid is T 22,484,456 |akhs and pramium
charges paid of T Nil respectively on the repayment date is shown in the finance cost in cash flow statements.



TMF Business Services Limited (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LEMITED) (CIN - U45200MH1989PLCG50444)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the vear ended March 3%, 2024

37. Financial risk management

The Company's activities expose it to market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk}), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s
risk management strategies focus on the un-predictability of these elements and seek to minimise the potential adverse effects on its financia! performance.
Centralised treasury department and risk management department advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the
Company and provides assurance to the Campany’s senior management that the Company's financlal risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and
procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives,

All hedging activities are carried out by Centralised treasury department possessing the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. The Company's policy
is to hedge the exposure by taking derlvative instruments and not fo trade in derivatives for speculative purposes.

{A) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that 2 counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, ieading to a financial loss. The
Company Is exposed to credif risk from its

-operating activities, primarily foans arising from financing activities:

- investing activities, including primarily investments in debt securities, preference shares, equity shares and mutua! fund schemes; and

- financing activities, including term deposits and batances with banks and financiat institutions and other financlal instruments,

Exposure to Credit Risk

The carrying armount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure, being the total of the carrying amount of batances with banks, time deposits
with banks, lcans arising from financing activities, investment in debt instruments, derivative instruments and other financial assets exciuding equity
investments,

Financial assets that are neither past due or impaired

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks/financial institutions is generally low zs the said deposits have been made with
banks/financial institution who have been assigned high credit rating by infemational/domestic rating agencies,

Credit risk on derivative instruments is generally low as the Company enters into derivative contracts with reputed banks.

Investments of surpius funds are made anly with internally approved financial institutions/counter party and primarily include investments in mutual funds and
bank deposits.

None of the Company's cash equivatents, including time deposits with banks, are past due or impaired, Regarding the derivative contracts, trade receivables
and other financial assets are neither impaired nor past due, there were no indications as at March 31, 2024, that defaults in payment obligations will ocour,

i) Loans - Credit quality of financial assets and impairment loss

Loans originate from financing activities to customers. Credit risk for loans is managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing cradit kmits and
periodic monitoring of the creditwerthiness of its customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business, Credit risk Is
manitored by the credit risk department of the Company independent Risk departmentffunction who have the responsibility for reviewing and managing credit
risk.

The Company creates & secures first and exclusive collateral charge at the time of loan origination on afl vehicles for which vehicie financing loans are given,
Hypothecation endorsement is obtained in favour of the Company in the Registration Cerlificate of the Vehicte funded under the vehicle finance category. Any
surplus remaining after sefttement of outstanding loan by way of sale of vehicle (collateral) is returned to the customer. Cther than the above Company
secures portion of the joss against loans financed o customers by obtaining third party credit guarantees,

Cencentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have similar
ecenomic features that would cause their ability to meet cantractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.
The Gompany is In retail lending business on pan India basis. Vehicle Finance {consisting of new Commercial Vehicles, Passenger Vehicles) is lending
against securily, Hypothecation endorsement Js made in favour of the Company in the Registration Certificate in respect of all registerable collateral. Portfalic
is reascnably well diversified across South, North, East ang Western parts of the country. Similarly, sub segments within Vehicle Finance like Heavy
Commercial Vehicles, Light Commercial Vehicles, Gar and Multi Utitity Viehicles, and Smadl Commercial Vehicles, are well diversified into sub product mix fo
mitigate concentration rsk.

The maximum credit exposure to any single customer from the financing business as of March 31, 2024 was Nil {March 31, 2023: T 151,86.46 lakhs fakhs).
On account of adoption of ind AS 109, the Company uses the 3 staging Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model to assess the provision for impairment loss
allowance. The model takes into account a continuing credit evaluation of Company's customers’ financial condition; ageing of loans; the value and adequacy
of collateral received from the customers: the Company's historical loss experience: and adjusted for forward looking information. The Gompany defines
default as an event when there is no reasonable expectation of recoveary.

The Company makes aliowances for losses on its portfolio of loans on the basis of expected future collection from receivables. The future coliection are
estimated on the basis of past collection trend which are adjusted for changes in current circumstanices as well as expected changes in collection on account
of future with respect to certain macre economic factor. The Company’s impairment assessment and measurement approach is set out in Note 3(viil} -
Accounting policies.



TME Business Services Limited [FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LINITED] {CIN - U45200MH1989PLLO50444)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

The following table provides information about the credit quality of financial assets and impairment loss
The ageing of loans as of balance sheet date is given below. The ageing analysis have been considersd from the due date.

(% in lakhs)
Stage-1 Stage-2 Stage-3 Total
seul " T : T " T
Particulars Loans {Gross) tmpairmant [oss Loans {Gross) irmpairmant 055 Loans (Grass) Impairmen! Loans {Gross) Impairment
aliowance allowance loss aliowance loss allowance
As at 31st March 2023 2(369,61.70 158,30.67 2231,52.66 138,41.25 2874,79.42 1452,48.60 25505,53.76 1749,20.53
Teansfers during the year
Transferred Pursuant to {203599,61.70} {158,30.67) {2231,12.66} {138,41.25} |2874,79.42} {1452,48.60} {25505,53.78) {1749,20.53)
Commen Control transaction-
Refer note 27
{20399,61.70) {158,30.67} (2231,12.68) {138,41.25} {2874,79.42)  {1452,48.80) {25505,53.76) {1749,20.53)
impact of change in credit
risk on account of stage - - - - - - - -
movement
Changes in Opening Credit
Exposure .
MNew Credit Exposura during
the year [net of repayments) ) ) ) ) ) )
Amount Written off During A
the year i ) -
As at 315t March 2024 - - - - - - - -
Stage-1 Stage-2 Stage-3 Total
Particulars H 3! i i i
i Loans (Gross) mpairment loss Loans (Gross) Impairment loss Loans {Gross) irmpairment Loans {Gross) Impairment
atlowance atlowance joss atlowance loss allowance
As at 315t March 2022 210%4,58.26 11,92.78 5750,44.16 185,34.04 3056,81.38 1354,78,31 259821,83.80 1618,05,14
Transfers during the year
Transfer to Staga-1 1716,04.53 98,42.56 {1564,64.87) {40,97.52} {151,39.66) {57,45.04} - -
Transfer to Stage-2 {1504,33.18} (8,04.36) 1542,13.02 23.47.05 (37,79.84) {15,42,6%) - -
Transfer to Stage-3 {405,80.80} (2,57.76) {1052,49.24) {38,09.84) 1458,30.04 40,67.60 - -
{194,09.45) 87,80.44 {1075,41.08} {55,60.31) 1269,10.56 (32,20.13) - -
Impact of change in credit
risk on account of stage . {65,93.18} - £8,00.89 - 1705,85.50 - 1707,93.61
movement
Changes in Opening Cradit
Expusgure P & {11413,05.80) {4,44.87) {2615,83.48) {70,59.04) 125,34.25 34,65.57 {13909,55.03) (40,38.34)
New Credit Exposura during
the vear {net of repayments) 10898,18.69 62,95.50 171,53.07 11,25.67 51,73.37 17.58.09 11221,45.13 91,80.26
Amount Written off Durin
the year & - - v - {1628,20.14) {1628,20.14} {1628,20.14} {1628,20.14)
As at 31st March 2023 20399,61.70 158,30.67 2231,12.66 13§,41.25 2874,79.42 1452,48.60 25505,53.76 1749,20.53




TMF Business Services Limited (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED} {CIN - U45200MH1989PLCO50444)
Noates forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{B} Management of Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial cbligations as they become due. The objective of fiquidity risk management is to
maintain sufficient fiquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as and when required,

The Company manages the liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves, barking facifities and reserve borrowing faciities, by continuously menitoring
forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The Cempany invests its surplus funds in bank fixed
deposit and liquid schemes of mutual funds, which carry nofnegligible mark to market risks.

The below table analyses the Company’s non-derivative and derivative financial liabilities as zt the reporting date, inta relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining pericd (as at that date) to the contractual maturity date. The amaunts disciosed in the below table are the contractual un-giscounted cash flows.
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial Habilities, including estimated/contractual interest payments as at March 31,
2024: '

(T in lakhs)
. N Total
Particutars Carrying Due in Ist year Due in Znd year Due in 3rd to Due after 5th year  contractual
amount Sthyear
cash flows
Non derivatives financial liabilities
Barrowings 268,00.00 269,00.00 - - - 265,00.00
Trade pavable 1,54.53 1,94.53 - - - 1,94.53
Other financial liabilities 11,69.10 6,42.72 1,66,21 3,60.17 - 11,65.10
Total 282,63.63 277,37.25 1,66.21 3,60.17 - 282,63.63

Contractuat maturities of berrowings incltdes cash flows relating to coliateratized debt cbligations. This represents the amount received against the transfer of
toans arising from financing activities in securitisation transactions andfor direct assignments, which do not qualify for derecognition. The liability of the
Company in such cases is limited to the extent of credit enhancements provided. The contractual maturities of such collateralized debt obligations are as
follows:

{2 in Jakhs)
Total
i Carry: i Dug i h
Particulars Srrying Due in Istyear B in 2nd ue in 3rd to 5t contractual
amount year year
cash flows

Collateralized debt obligations - - - - .

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturitles of financial liabifities, including estimated/contractual interest payments as at March 21,
2023:

(% in lzkhs)
; . Totaf
Particulars Carrying Due in 15t year Due in 2nd year Due in 3rd 1o Due after Sth year  tontractual
amount Sth year

cash flows
Non derivatives
Borrowings 24649,04.28 13960,08.35 7075,77.98 5800,15.64 &03,27.67 27435,30.65
Trade and other payables 217,12.58 217,12.98 - - - 217,12.98
Lease liabilities 82,45.64 19,82.3C 19,58.47 44,317,559 20,78.92 104,38.28
Other financial Hahilities 806,30.68 756,65.43 1,75.01 7.580.24 806,30.68
Derivatives
Derivative contracts 14,86.64 - 1,486.64 - - 14,86.64
Tatal 25769,84.22 14953,69.06 7111,99.11 5852,24.47 624,06.5% 28581,99.23

Contractual maturities of borrowings includes cash flows relating to coliateralized debt obligations. This represents the amount received against the transfer of
ioang arising from financing activifies in securitisation transactions andfor direct assignments, which do not qualify for derecognition, The liability of the
Company in such cases is limited to the extent of credit enhancements provided. The contractual maturities of such colisteralized debt obligations are as
follows:

{X in Jakhs)
Larryin; Due in 2nd Due in 3rd to 5th Totaf
. 't
Particulars rying Due in ist year tontractual
amount year year
cash flows

Coltateralized debt obligations 74,87.24 74,87.24 - - 74,87.24



TMF Business Services Limited (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED] (CIN - U45200MHI289PLLDS0444)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 3, 2024 ’

(C) Managerment of Market Risk

Market risk s the risk that the falr value of future cash fiows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises
three types of risk: currency rigk, interest rate risk and other price risk, such as equily prics risk. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of
changes in the interest rates, fareign currency exchange rates, equity price fluctuations, liquidity and other market changes. Financial instruments affected by
market risk include borrowings, investments and derivative financlal instrumants.

The Company exposure to market risk is a function of asset liability management activities. The Company continuously monitors these risks and manages
them through appropriate risk limits. The Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) raviews market-related trends and risks and adopts various
strategles retated to assets and liabilities, in fine with the Company’s risk management framework. ALCO activities are in turn monitored and reviewed by a
board sub-committee. ’

i) Foreign eurrancey risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of Impact/changes related to fair value or future cash flows of an financial Instrument exposure in foreign currency, which
fluctuate duse to changes in forsign exchange rates. The fiuctuation in forgign currency exchange rates may have potential Impact on the Statement of Profit
and Loss and equity, where assatsiiabilities are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company.

The Company's Toreign currency exposure arises mainly from variable rate foreign currency borrowings d¢enominated in USD. The Company, as per its risk
management policles, enters into derivative financial instruments tke currency swaps and forward contracts 1o mitigate risk of changes in exchange rate in
foreign currency. Whan a derivative is entered in to for the purpose of being as hedge, the Company negotiates the tesms of those derivatives 1o match with
the terms of the hedge exposure, The Company palicy is to fully hedge its foreign currency borrowings at the time of drawdown till the repayment.

Mo sensitivity analysis is prapared as the Gompany does not expect any material effect on the Campany’s profit and loss & financial pasition arising from the
effects of reasonably possible changes to forelgn exchange rates on variable rate foreign currency barrowings as the exposure is fully hedge by entering into
derivative financial instruments.

{il} Interest rate risk

|nierest rate risk i3 the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of & financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market rates. The Company's
exposure 1o the risk of changes in market rates relates primarily to the Company’s borrowings obligations with floating/variable interest rates.

The Company borrows through various instruments which has interest rate reset clause which is exposed to interest rate fisk. As al the end of reporting
period, the Company had follawing variable/fioating interest rate borrawings:

(X In lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31 Asat March 31
2024 2023
Non derivative Financial Lahilities
Variakle rate borrowings* - 15309,19.25

* The above excludes the foreign currency denominated fioating interest rate borrowings, the Company manages its interest rate risk by entering into interest
rate swap and cross currency interest rate swap derivative instruments in which it agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and
variable rate interest amounts calculated by reference 16 an agreed-upon notional principal amount.

Interest rate sensitivity .

Profit or loss is sensitive to interest expense from variable rate borrowings as a result of changes in interest rate. Increase/decrease of 100 basis points in intarest rates
at the regorting date would restit in an impact {decrease/increase in case of profit/(loss) before tax of NiL and ¥ 153,09.15 lakhs on income for the year ended March 31,
2024 and March 31, 2022 respectively.

The above sensitivity analysis assumes that aii other variables remain constant and the borrowings outstanding at the reporting date have been outstanding
for the entire reporting period.

iii} Equity price risk

Equity price risk s related to the change in market reference price of the investments in equity securities.

The fair value of some of the Company’s investments meaasured at fair value through other comprehensive income and fair value through profit and loss
exposes the Company to equity price risks. These investments are subject to changes in the market price of securities. The fair valug of Company's
investmant in squity securitiee as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 was NiL and ¥ 310,44.80 lakhs respectively.

(% in lakhs)
Impact on Impact on other
profit for the components of
Particulars year equity
Mo gy Memmae MO
Equity price Sensitivity
Increase in equity price by 10 %* - 18,04.83 - 12,%9.65
Dacrease in equity price by 10 %~ ) - {18,04.83) - {12,59.65)

(Note: The impact Is indicated on equity before consequential tax impact, if any).
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Capital management

The Company's capilal management is intended to creale value for shareholders by facilifating the mesting of long-term and short-term goals of the
Company,

The Gempany determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual operating plans and long-term product and other strategic investment plans,
The funding requirements are met through equity, convertible and non-convertible debt securities, and ather tong-term/short-term borrowings. The Company’s
policy is aimed at combination of short-term and fong-term borrowings,

The Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of regulatory capital ratio viz. CRAR

The management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends fo sharehalders, The Company's goal is to continue to be able to provide
retum to shareholders by continuing to distribute dividends in future periads. Refer the below nate for dividend declared and paid.

Total debt includes afl long and short-term borrowings as disclosed in notes 17 to the financial statements, Equity comprises all components excluding

(profityioss on cash flow hedges.
Below are the key regulatory capital ratios at the year end dates

Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2823
CRAR {%)~ - 24,00%
CRAR - Tier | capital (%) - 13.14%
CRAR - Tier | capital (%) - 10.86%

"The above ratios have been computed in accordance with the guidelines issyed by RBL.

in addition the Company has financial covenants relating to the borrowing facilities that it has taken from the lenders which is monitored and complied by the
Company.

Transfer of financial assets

The Company transfers foans arising from financing activities thraugh securitisation and assignment fransactions. fn mast of these transactions, the Company
also provides credit enhancements 1o the transferes, .

Because of the existence of credit enhancements in such fransactions, the Company continues to have the obiigaticn tc pay to the transferee, limited fo the
extent of credit enhancement, even if it doss not collect the equivalent amounts from the original asset and continues to retain substantiafly all risks and
rewards assoclated with the recelvables, and hence, such transfer does not meet the derecognition criteria resulting into the transfer not being recorded as
sale. Consequently, the proceeds received from the transfer are recorded as collateralized debt obligation,

The carrying amount of loans arising from financing activities along with the associated labilities is as follows:

39,

[P NES
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(X in lakhs}
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
. Carryving B Carrying
Nature of Assets Carrying amount of carrying amount of
amount of - amount of .
asset sold assaciated asset sold associated
- labilities liabilities
Loans - - 106,90.83 74,8724

Net of provision of NIL and % 2,60.35 lakhs a5 at March 31, 2024, and March 31, 2023 respectiveiy.

Qther disclosures

No penalties were imposed by RE and other reguiators during the financial year 2023-24. {financial year 2022-23: Mif)

The Company did not have any exposure in real estate sector during the financial year 2023-24. (financlal year 2022-23: Nil}

The Company did not excesded the prudential exposure limits in respect to single borrowsr limit / group borrower limit during the finencial year 2023-24,
{financial year 202-23: Niy

The Company was registered with Reserve Bank of India as a Systemically important Non Deposit Taking Non Banking Financial Company. During financial
year 2023-24, the company has surrendered the NBFC license of Reserve bark of India due to demerger of its NBFC undertaking .

The Company did not drawn down any amcunts from the reserves during the financial year 2023-24 except as disclosed in Staternent of Changes in Equity.
{financtal year 2022-23: Nil)

The Company did not soid any Financial Assets to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Recanstruction during financial year 2023-24. {financial
year 2022-23: Nil)

The Company did not purchased any non-performing financia! assets during the financial year 2023-24. {financial vear 2022-23; Nif}

The Company did not have any exceptional items of income and expenditure during the financial year 2023-24. (financial year 2022-23; Nif

The Company did not have any divergence in pravisioning and gross NPA reported by company and assessed by RBI in inspection report for FY 21-22.

Mo modified opinion(s) or other reservation{s) has been mentioned in the audit report or limited review report in respect of the financial results of any previous
financial year or quarter which has an impact on the profit or loss of the repertable period,

Overseas assets {far thase with joint ventures and subsidiaries abroad)

The Company does not have any joint venture or subsidiary abroad, hence not applicable.

Unsecured advances

As at March 31, 2024, the amount of unsecured advances stood at NIL {(March 31, 2023: Rs. 304,81.16 Lakhs).

The Company has not granted unsecured advances against callateral of intangibie securities such as charge over the rights, licenses or authority,



39 A. The Parliament has approved the Code an Social Security, 2020 (the Code’)
Graiuity. The effective date from which the Code and its provisicns would be applicable is yet to be notified and the rules which would pr
kased on which financial impact can be determined are yet to be framed after which the financial impact can be ascertained, The Company wilt complete its
svaluation and will give appropiiate impact, if any, in the financial results following the Code becoming effective and the related rules being framed and

TMF Business Services Limited (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE 13MITED) {CIN - U45200MH1980PLCE50444}

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

which may impact the contribution by the Company towards Provident Fund and
ovide the details

notified.

39 8. Ratios
Particulars Year ended March Year anded March

2024 2023 {Refer note 1)

{a}  Current Ratio 0.13 NA
Current assets/Current liabilities

{b) Debt - Equity Ratic 9.85 NA
[Total Debt/ Sharehoiders' Equityl

{z}  Debt Service Coverage Ratio 0.16 NA
{(Profiti{loss) before exceptional items and tax+interest on
BarrewingsY(interest on Borrowings + Net repayment of Borrowings)]

{d) Return on Equity {ROE) {0.02) NA
et profit after tax / Average shareholders’ equity]

(e} Trade receivabies tunover ratio 452 NA
[Revenue from operations / Average Trade receivables]

{fi  Trade payables turmover ratio {Refer Note 2) NA MNA
[Cost of material consumed / Avarage Trade payables]

{g) Net capital tumnover ratio n.21) NA
[Revenue from operations / Working capital]

{h}  Met profit ratio 0.21} NA
{Net profit after tax / Revenue from continuing operations

iy  Retumn on capital employed (ROCE} 0,03 NA
tProfit before interest and tax / Capital employed]

Notes:

The Company was NBFC for the year ended March 31, 2023 and the financial statements of the Company were presented as per Division il of Schedule Il

1. (o the Companies Act, 2013 which did not require above mentioned disclosure. Hence, ratios are not presented for comparative year. Refer note 27.

2

No trade payble reiated to operating lease business is outstanding for year ended March 31, 2024
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TMF Business Services Limited (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED] {CIN ~ U45200MHTI83PLLOS0444)
Netes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Additionat disclosures given in terms of Notification dated March 24, 2021 issued by Ministry of Corporate affairs,

a. Title deed of immoveable properties
There is no immoveable properties are held in the name of Company. Hence, other disclosure requirments are not applicable.

b. As at March 31, 2024 and as at March 31, 2023, the Company does not have any foans or advances outstanding to promoters, directors, KMPs znd the
refated parties, that are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms of repayment,

¢. Capital Work in Progress & Intangible Assets under Development amounted to Nil st March 31, 2024 and Nil at March 31, 2023,
d. There is ne proceedings initiated/pending against the Company for benami property.

e. Borrowings from banks or financial institutions
During the year and post transfer of NBFC business, the Company has not been sanctioned waorking capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate,
from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets.

. Wilful Defaulter
The Company has not been declared as Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any lender.

& During the year ended 31.03.2024 and 2623, the Company did not have any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies
Act, 2013 or sectlon 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

h. Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies {(ROC)
At March 31, 2024 and at March 31, 2023, there is no charges or satisfaction with charge yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond
the statutory period.

i. Compliance with number of layers of companies
As per Companies (Restrictian on number of layers) Rules, 2017, Non-Banking Financiai Companies are exempted from restriction on number of
layers.

j. The cormpany has not advanced or loaned or invested funds {either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds} to any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {Intarmediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary (i)
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or oh behalf of the company {Ultimate Beneficiaries)
or (i) provide any guarantes, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

k. The company has not received any fund from any person{s} or entitylies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding {whether
recorded. in writing or otherwise} that the company shail {i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persens or entitles identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate Beneficiaries} or (i} provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiarias,

L There zre ne transactions which are not recorded in the books of account and have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year ended March
31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961,

. The Company has not traded/invested in crypto currency Gr virtual currency for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

Asset Held for sale

The Company had acquired ynderlying collateral in satisfaction of its receivable from certain bormwers and has classified those assets as held for
sale. As at March 31, 2024 assefs held for sale amounted to Nil (as at March 31, 2023 ¥ 170,63.56 lakhs). The Company was expects to dispose
off these assets in open market within next 1 year.

Company as a Lessor

The Company has given vehicles under operating lease.

The Company has recognised lease rental income from leasing of these assels amounting to Rs. 50,40.45 lakhs (Previous year: 49,58.85 lakhs) in
the Statement of Profit and Loss, There are no variable lease rentals recegnized during the year,

Although the risks associated with righis that the Company retains in underiying assets are not considerad to be significant,the Company employs
strategies to further minimise these risks.For example,ensuring all contracts include clauses reguiring the lessee to compensate the Company
when aproperty has been subjected to excess wear-and-tear during the lease term,

The undiscounted maturity analysis of future lease receivables is as follows-

{% in lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023

Within 1 year 38,12.87 31,17.15
12 years 10,4822 16,83.83
2-3 years 802,68 6,71.64
3-4 years 3,38.72 4,72.27
4-5 yoars 55.84 1,07.34

Tota) 650,59.33 60,52.23




Tata Motors Finance Limited (CIN - U45208MH1989P1LC050444)
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Pisclosure as mandatory by Reserve Bank of India

The Company has surrendered the Certificate of Registration (CoR) granted by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as result of
demerger (for more detail, please refer note no. 27) of the Non-Banking Finance related business ("NBFC Undertaking"} of the
Company through the Scheme of demerger which came in to effect from June 30, 2023 with appointed date for the scheme is
Aprii 1, 2023,

following RBI disciosures were applicable till previous year and are not applicable post demerger of the NBFC undertaking ,
however reproduce ail below RBI discisoure for comparative year,

43, Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities
The table below shows the maturity analysls of assets and liabilities according to when they are expected o be recovered or

This disclosure is not applicable for March 31, 2624,
This disciosure is for March 31, 2023,

{Zin lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31,2023
Current Non cusrent Total
1 ASSETS
1 Financial assets
{a} Cash and cash equivalents 3227,01.82 - 3227,01.92
{b} Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents 8,23.14 53,18.77 61,4191
{¢} Derivative financial instruments - 96,99.07 96,99.07
{d) Receivables
i, Trade receivahles 2%,97.01 - 29,97.01
li. Otherreceivables 2,37.54 - 2,37.54
{e) Loans 17463,41.81 6282,91.41 23756,33.22
{f} Investments 326,08.08 1114,69.29 1440,77.37
{g) Other financial assets 766,45.27 29,56.79 796,12.06
2 Non-financial assets
{a) Current tax assets (net} - 205,34.70 205,34.70
{b) Deferred tax assets (net) - 21%,54.00 215,54.00
{c) Property, plant and equipment - 200,33.12 200,33.12
(d} Capital work-in-progress - - -
(&) Other intangible assets - 2,24.14 2,24.14
{f} Other non-financial assets 113,16.57 19,66.94 132,83.51
3 Assets held for sate 170,63.56 - 170,63.56
Total assets 22107,34.90 8234,58.23 30341,93.13
it LIABILITIES
1 Financial labilities
{a} Derivative financial instruments - 14,86.64 14,86.64
{h} Payables
i. Trade payables
- totat outstanding dues of micre enterprises and small 10,67.67 - 10,67.67
enterprises
- total outstanding dues of craditors other than micro 193,51.93 - 193,51.93
enterprises and smaif enterprises
fi. Other payables
- total sutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises
Other payables 104,34.94 - 104,34.94
{c) Debt securities 4255,02.90 1964,07.68 6219,10.58
{d} Borrowings (Other than debt securities) B208,81.73 8909,44,74 17118,26.47
(&) Subordinated liabilities 229,80.77 1081,86.46 1311,67.23
{f) Other financials Labilities £96,20.26 88,25.12 784,45.38
2 Non-financial liabilities
(a} Current tax liabllities {net) 3,02 - 3.02
(b} Provisions 14,65.12 76,80.09 91,45.21
{c} Other non-financial liabilities 63,42,12 - 63,42.12
Total labilities 13775,50.46 12135,30.73 25911,81.19

Net 8330,84.44 {39060,72.50) 4430,131.34
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TMF Business Services Limited {FORMERLY XNOWRN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED] (CIN - U45200MH1985PLCO50444}

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Additional disclosures given in terms of the Non Banking Financial Companies - Systemically Important Non Deposit Taking
Cornpany and Deposit Taking Cempany {Reserve Bank} Directions, 2016 {as amended)

44C,

Pergetual debt instruments
This disclosure is nat applicable for March 31, 2024
{% in lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31
2023

Bow N

44D,

Funds ralsad through perpetual debt instruments -
Amount cutstanding at the end of year 1343,00.00
Percentage of amount of perpetual debt instrument of the amount of Tier | Capital 1B.07%
Financial year in which Interast on perpetual debt instruments is not paid on account of "Lock-

in Clause’ NI

Diselosure on securitisation/diract assigment of standard assets

This disclosure s not applicable for March 33, 2024

1} Securitisation of standard assets effected in line with the revised guidelines issued by R8I, dated August 21, 2012

Particulars AsatMarch 31
2023

No. of special purpose vehicles {SPVs) spomsored by the Company far securitisation 2
transactions

Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SYPs sponsared by the Company {as

certified by the SPV's auditors) 120,72.74

Total amount of exposures retainad by the tompany to comply with Minimum Retention

Requirement (MRR) as on the date of baiance sheet

a. Off-batance sheeat exposures

First loss -
Others -
b. On-balance sheet exposures

First loss 74,14.46
Others 22,4022
Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than MRR

3. Off-balance sheet exposures

i} Exposures to own securitizations

First toss -
Bank Guarsntae -
£xcass Interest Spread 2,24,92
11} Exposures to third party securitizations

First loss -
Others -
b. On-balance sheet exposures

1) Exposures to own securitizations

First loss -
Second Loss {in the Form of Fixed Deposits} -
Others -
ii} Exposures to third party securitizations

First loss -
Others -

The sbove information is based or information submitted by the SPVs, which is duly certified by the 5PV’'s auditors,
Note: These securitisation transactions do not qualify for derecegnition under ind AS,

H} Details of Assignment transactions undertaken by applicable NBFCs

This disciosure is not applicabla for March 31, 2024 (% in lzkhs}
Particulars As at March 31
2023
1 WNo, of contracts assigned during the year 210,57.00
2 Asgregate vaiue [net of provisions) of accounts sold* 2801,65.61
3 Aggregate consideration 2801,85.61
4 Additional considerstion realized in respect of accounts transfarrad in earliar years -
5 Aggregate gain /ioss over nat book vaiue -

*includes the carrying value of portfolios soid out of loans classified as amortised cost of Rs, 119,67 lakhs in FY 22-23,



TMF Business Services Limited (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FENANCE LIMITED) {CIN - U45200MH19837L0050444)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Additional disclosures given in terms of the Non Banking Financial Companies - Systemically fmportant Non Deposit Taking Company and Deposit Taking Company
(Reserve Bank} Directions, 2016 {as amended)

44E, Disclosure of restructured advances

This disclosure is not applicable for March 31, 2024

For the previous year i.e. financial year 2022-23 {Xin lakhs)
Type of Restructuring => Others
Asset Classification => Standard  Sub-standard  Doubtful Loss Total
1 Restructured accounts as on Aprif 1, 2022 Mo, of Borrowers 13 - 98 - 108
fopening figures] Amount Quistanding 12,90.34 - 19,01.01 - 31,51.35
Provision Amaunt £7.27 - 4,46.28 - 5,13.55
2 Fresh restructuring during the year 2022 - 2023 No. of 8orrowers ~ - . - -
Amount Gutstanding - - - - -
Provision Amount - - - - -
3 Upgradstions to restructured standard category during Mo, of Borrowers 10 - {10} - -
the financial year Amount Qutstanding 86,45 B {1,24.84) - (38.39)
. Provision Amount 6.40 - {35.08) - {28.68)
4 Restructured standard advances which cease ta attract  No, of Borrowers - - - - -
higher provisioning and / or additional risk weight at the Amount Outstanding - - . . .
end of the financial vear and hence need not be shown
as restructured standard advances at the beginning of »
the next financizl year Provision Amount - - - - oo
5 Down gradations of restructured accounts during the No. of Borrowers - . - - -
financial year Amount Outstanding - . - - -
Brovision Amaunt - - - - -
6 Write offs of restructured accounts during the financial  No. of Borrowers {1) - {10} - (1)
year Amount Dutstanding {2.72) - {4,96.30) - {4,93.02)
Provision Amount {C.14} - {1,62.30) - (1,02.44)
7 Recovery from restructured accounts during the financial No. of Scrrowers {12} - {30} - {42)
year Amaunt Qutstanding {12,87.62) - (6,01.60} - {18,85.22)
Provision Amount (67.14) - {1,28.87) - {1,97.03}
8 Sale of restructured accounts during the financial year  No. of Borrowers - - - - -
Amount Qutstanding - - B - -
Provision Amount - - - - -
9 Restructured accounts as on March 31, 2023 No. of Borrowers 10 - 46 - 56
[closing figures] Amount Quistanding 86,45 - 6,78.27 - 7,64.72
Provision Amount 6.32 - 1,79.02 - 1,85.41

The Company did nat have any restructuring under COR mechanism and SME Deht restructuring mechanism and hence ne disclosure is required for same,



TMF Business Services Limited (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED) {CIN - U45200MH1989PLL050444)

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Additional disclosures given in terms of the Non Banking Financial Companies - Systemically Important Non Deposit Taking Company and
Deposit Taking Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 {as amended)

44F. Break up of '"Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the head ‘Expenditure’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss
This disclosure is not applicable for the year ended March 31, 2024,
(% in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended
2023
1 Provision for doubtful loans and advances {others) {12,74.47}
2 Provision for doubtful Loans 73,03.10
3 Provision made towards income tax (5,55.62}
4 Provision on consumer disputes 47.01
5 Provision on indirect taxes 2,65.91
44G.  Investments
This disclosure is not applicable for March 31, 2024
(¥ in takhs)
Particulars As at March 31
2023
1 Value of investments
{I)  Gross value of investments
(a) Inindia 1440,77.37
{b} Outside India -
{ii) Provision for depreciation
{a) Inindla -
{6} Outside india -
(i}  Net value of investmeants
{a} Inlindia 1440,77.37
{b) Outside india -
2 Movement of provisions held towards depreciation of investments
{i} Opening balance -
{ii}  Add: Provisions made during the year -
(iif)  Less: Utilised -
(iv] Clesing balance -
44H.  Capital Market
This disclosure Is not applicable for March 31, 2024
(% in takhs)
Particulars As at March 31
2023
1 Direct investment in equity sharas, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity 475.96.31
ariented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt; T
2 Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to individuals
for investment in shares (including 1P0s / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and -
units of equity oriented mutual funds;
2 Advances for any other purposaes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or
units of equity orientad mugual funds are taken as primary security; i
4 Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or
convertible bonds or convertible debentures ar units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where
the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds / converiible debentures / units of ’
equity oriented mutual funds does not fully cover the advances;
S Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers
and market makers; )
6 Loans sanctioned to corporate against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other
securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter’s contribution to the equity of new companies in -
anticipation of raising resources;
7  Bridge loans to companies against expectad equity flows / issues; -
underwriting commitments taken up by the banks in respect of primary issue of shares or
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds; )
9  Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading; -
18 All exposures to Alternative investment Funds:
(i} Category ! 489,34

{ii} Category 1l
(iif} Category 1

430,85.65



TMF Business Services Limited [FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED) [CIN - U45200MH19B9PLCO50444)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

441, Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migrations of ratings in respect of all credit facilities and debt instruments during the year:

This disclosure is not applicable for March 31, 2024

Instruments
Rating Secured Non- Unsecured
agency Vear ended Long—te‘r.nj bark Shcrt-t‘err? bank convertible subordinated Commercial papers Perpetual debt
facilities facilities "
debentures Tier il NCDs
CRISIL AA-f CRISIL A1+ CRISH. AA-/ CRISIL AA-/ CRISIL AL+ CRISILA /STABLE
1 cRisi March 31,2023 crapix STABLE STABLE
ICRA AA-/ ICRA A1+ iCRA AA-/ {CRA AA-/ ICRA Al+ ICRA A / Postive
2 ICRA March 31, 2023 Postive Pastive Postive
CARE AA-/ NA CARE AA-/ CARE AA-f CARE Al+ CARE A / STABLE
3 RE 1,202
cA March 33,2023 " orapi STABLE STABLE

44).  Details of financing of parent company's products
This disclosure is not applicable for March 31, 2024

{% in Jakhs)
Particulars As 3t March 31
2023
No's Amount
1  Commercial vehicled ©4,304 10357,39.00
2 Passenger vehicle# 4,201 358,17.00
#Represents financing of products of ultimate parent entity Tata Motors Limited.
44K, Concentration of advances
This disclosure {s not appficable for March 31, 2024
(% jn Jakhs}
Particulars As at March 31
2023
1 Total advances to twenty largest borrowers / customer 878,51.39
2 Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the applicable NBFC 3.44%
4L, Concentration of exposures
This disclosure is not applicabla for March 31, 2024
(X in lekhs)
Particulars As at March 31
2023
1 Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customer 878,51.3¢2
2 Percentage of exposures 1o twenty largast borrowers / customer to total exposure of the NBFC 3.90%
on barrowers / customer ’
44M. Concentration of NPAs
This disclosure is not applicable for March 31, 2024
[ in lgkhs}
Particulars As at March 31
2023
1 Total exposure to top four NPA accoupts 4,27.58



TME Business Services Limited [FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE HMITED) (CIN - U45200MH1285PLCOS0444)

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

44N, Sector-wise NPAs [Percentage of NPAs to total advances in that sector)
This disclosure is not epplicable for March 31, 2024
(% in jakhs
Ag at March 21, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Sectors Total Exposure  Gross NPAs Parcentage of  Total Exposure Gross NPAs Percentage of
tincludes on Gross NPAste  (includes on Gross NPAs to total
balance sheet total exposure  balance sheet exposura in that
and off-balance tn that sector and off-balance sector
sheet exposure) sheet exposura)
1 Agriculture and allied activities - - - - -
2 Industry
i - - - - - -
ii. - - . - - -
Totat
3 Services
i. Retail Loans - - - 25061,83.15 2877,61.22 11.48%
ii. Wholesale Loans - - - 452,42.21 - -
Total - - 25514,25.36 2877,61.22 -
4 Personal Loans
i . - R . R -
Wi, - - - - - -
Total . - - . - -
5 Others, if any - - - - - -
Notes:
{a} Percentage of Gross NPA to tota! advances at Company lavel as per RB! regulations for current and comparative years are as below -
March 31, 2023 : 11.28%
440,  Customer complaints
This disclosure is not applicable for March 31, 2024
{Numbers)
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
1 Mo of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 796 410
1.1 Transferred Pursuant to Commen Contrel transaction- Refer note 27** {796}
2 No of complaints receivad during the year* - 9,058
3 No of complaints redressed during the year - 8,670
3.1 No of which, number of complaints rejected by the NBFC - 311
4 No of complaints pending at the end of the year - 796
*complaints inciude legal cases fodged
Complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman
S Numbar of maintainable complaints recelved by the NBFC from Dffice of Ombudsman - 167
£.1 OfF 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC by Office of Ombudsman - 164
5.2 Of 5, number of complaints resolved through conciliation/mediation/advisories - £
issued by Office of Ombudsman
5.3 Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by Office of Ombudsman against the - -
NBFC
B MNumber of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time {other than those appealad) - -

Additional disclosures given in tesms of the Nos Banking Financial Companies - Systemically important Non Deposit Yaking Company and Deposit Taking Company (Reserve Bankj Directions,

2016 {as amended]}

**This disciosure is not applicable for the year ended March 31, 2024, ali these cases are related to NBFC operation of the Company which has been demerged
to Tata Motors Finance Soutions {formerly TMFL).

Grounds of complaints, Number of Number of % increase/ Number of Of 5, numhber of
{i.e. complaints relating camplaints complaints decrease in the complaints pending  complaints
to} pending at the received number of at the end of the pending beyond 30

beginning of the  during the complaints year days

year vear recaived over

the previous
1 2 3 4 5 &

Previous Year
Payment not reflecting 225 2807 75% 633 443
Any Notice / request from Advocates/ RTO a] 2011 NA - -
Not appliad for a foan, but getting calls 36 1534 -38% 13 8
Renawed Insurance Policy Not received 12 528 23% 29 &
Recovery Agents/ Diract Sales Agents ¢] 494 -1% - -
Others 137 1682 ~13% 121 aQ
Total 411} 8056 31% 796 547




TMF Business Services Limited [FORMERLY KNQWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LEMITED) {CIN - U45200MH1I989PLCOS0444)

Nozes forming part of finaneial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

44P,  Movement of NPAs

2 in fakhs
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
3 NetNPAsto net advances 5.81%
2 Movement of NPAs {Gross)
(i} Opening balances 2877,61.22 3076,94.61
(i} Transferred Pursuant to Commen Contral transaction- Refer note 27 (2877,61.22) -
fiil}  Additions during the year - 2178,89.44
{iv)  Reductions during the year - 2378,32.83
fvi Closing balances - 2877,61,22
3 Movement of Net NPAs
i}  Opening balances 1422,74,59 1704,26.64
{ii} Transferred Pursuant to Common Centrol (1422,74.59) -
{iii}  Additions during the year - 468,60.64
{iv)  Reductions during the year - 750,12,68
{iv] Closing balances - 1422,74.59
4 Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)
(i} Opening balances 1454,86.62 1372,67.57
{ii} Transferred Pursuant to Common Control {1454,86.52) -
(i} Provisions made during the vear - 1710,38.79
{iv}  Write-off / write-back of excess provisions - 1628,20.14
{v}) Closing balances - 1454,86.62
440, Forward Rate Agreement [ Interest Rate Swap
{% In lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31
2023
{i}  The notionat principal of swap agreements 718,60.00
(i}  Losses which would be incurred if counterparties faited to fulfill their obligations under the 86,98.07
agreements
(i} Collatera! required by the applicable NBFC upon entering into swap -
{iv}  Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps -
(v} The fair value of the swap book 82,12.43

The Company as per its risk management policy, uses foreign exchange forward and other interest Rate Swap {IRS) to hedge the risk exposure relating to changes in

foreign currency exchange rate and interest rate,

Refer note 37 far risk management policies adopted by the Company.

44R. Quantitative Disclosures

{Zinlakhs)
Particulars As at March 21
2023
Currency Interest Rate
Derivativas Derivatives
{i} Derivatives {Notional Principal Amaount)
For hedging 718,60.00
i) Marked to Market Positions
a) Asset (+} 85,92.87 11,06.20
b) Liability {-} - {14,86.64)

(i) Credit Exposure
{iv) Unhedged Exposures



TMF Busingss Services Limited {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LEMITED) (CIN - U45200MH 1989PLC0O50444)

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Disclasure on Hauidity risk as per RBI notification #B1/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November 04, 2019 on Liguidity Risk

445 Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Compaaies

This disclosure is not applicable for March 31, 2624

{i} Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both depasits and borrowings)

{% in iakhs}
No. of Sipnificant Amount Percentage to Parcentage to
Counterparties™ Total Deposits  Totai Lisbilities
1 20 22369,96.00 N& BE.28%

*Represents counterparties accounting for more than 1% of total liabilities

(i1} Top 20 large deposits {amount in Rs takhs and percentage of Total DBepasits) - Not Applicable

{iii} Top 10 Borrowings
{% in iakhs)
2,
Amount % of Tt:ftal
Borrowings
17182,96.00 63.71%

{iv} Funding Concentration based on significant instrument / praduct

{X in lakhs}
Name of the instrument/product Amount % to.‘ljo.tal
Liabilities
1 Term Loans {including External Commercial Borrowings) 15323,41.22 59.10%
2 Collaterised Debt Chligation (CDO) 74,87.24 0.28%
3 Commercial Paper 3256,07.45 12.56%
4 inter-Corporste Deposits 300,00.00 1.16%
5  Working Capltal Demand Loan 1345,00.00 5.19%
&  Non-Convertible Debenturas 2963,03,12 11.43%
7  Subordinated Debt 1311,67.22 5.06%
4 Cash Cradit 74,98.01 0.29%
{v} Stock ratios
Particulars Total public Total fiabilities Total assets
funds
1 Commercial papers as 2 percentage of i3% 13% 1%
Non-tonvertible debentures {eriginal maturity of fess than one year} as a
2 none none none
percentage of
3 Other short-term liabilities as a percentage of 41% 41% 35%

Note: Interest accruad but not due has baen axcluded from Borrowings/Total Publit funds

{vi) Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management

Tata Motors Finance Limited (TMFL) has constituted an Asset Liability Supervisory Committee {ALCO) to oversee figuidity risk management. ALCO consists of Managing
Director & Chief Executive Officer, Non-Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Digital and Marketing Officer, Chief Cradit Officer, Chief Risk Gfficer and Head -
Treasury. The ALCO meetings are hald every quarter. TMFL has a Risk Management Committes (RMC), a sub-committes of the Board, which oversees overall risks to
whith tha Company is exposed including liquidity risk management LRM). ALCO’s views on liguidity and asset liability management are presented to RMC for its

independent review on a regular basis. The ALCQ and RMC also updates the Board at regular intérvals,



TMF Business Services Limited (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED} (CIN - U45200MH1989PLCO50444)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Additional disclosures given in terms of the Non Banking Financial Companies - Systemically Important Non Deposit Taking Company and Deposit
Taking Campany (Reserve Bank} Directions, 2016 {as amended}

44T7. Disclosure on Asset Classification and Provisions as per RBI notification RBI/2019-20/170 DOR {NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.16.106/2019-20 dated
13th March 2020
This disclosure is riot applicable for March 31, 2024

This disclosure is for March 31,2023

(% in {akhs)
Asset Gross Carrying Loss Net Carrying Provisions Difference
classification Amountas per Allowances Amount required as per hetween Ind AS
Asset Classificats RBIN as per Ind AS Ind AS {Provisions) as IRACP norms 1089 provisions
sset Liassification as per orms 109 required under and IRACP
Ind AS 109 norms
1 2 3 4 5=3-4 ] 7=4-6
Performing Asset ‘
Standard Asset Stage-1 20405,07.35 154,76.73 20250,30.62 84,91.40 69,85.33
Stage-2 2231,29.70 142,00.67 2089,25.03 19,95.69 122,04.98
Subtotal 22636,37.05 296,77.40 22339,55.65 104,87.0% 191,90.31
Non-Performing Asset (NPA}
SubStandard Stage-3 1415,80.07 551,11.04 868,69.03 141,88.01 409,13.03
Doubtful up to 1 Year Stage-3 1009,85.27 607,79.97 402,05.30 £22,06.93 (14,26.96}
1to 3 Years Stage-3 445.36.18 293,75.06 151,57.12 256,05.94 (2,26.88}
More than 3 Years Stage-3 2,58,70 2,16.55 43.15 1,97.37 19.18
Subtotal of Doubtful 1457,81.15 903,75.58 554,05.57 920,10.24 {16,34.66)
Loss Stage-3 - - - - -
Subtotal of NPA 2877,61.22 1454,86.62 1422,74.60 1062,08.25 392,78.37
Other items such as guarantees, loan Stage-1 27.09 G.20 26.89 - 0.20
commitments, etc. which are in the scope of Stage-2 - - - - -
Ind AS 108 but not covered under current Stage-3 - . ; - -
Income Recognition, Asset Classification and
Provisioning {IRACP) norms
Subtotal 27.09 0.20 26.89 - 0.20
Stage-1 20405,34.44 154,75.93 20250,57.51 84,91.40 69,85.53
TOTAL Stzge-2 2231,29.70 142,00.67 2089,29.03 18,95.69 122,04.88
Stage-3 2877,61.22 1454,86.62 1422,74.60 1062,08.25 392,78.37
25514,25.36 1751,64.22 23762,61.14 1166,95.34 584,68.88

in terms of requirement of RBI netification no. mentioned above on implementation of Indian Accounting Standards, Non-Banking Financial
Companies (NBFCs) are required to create an impairment reverse for any short fall in impairment allowance under Ind AS 109 and income
Recognition and Asset Classification and Provisioning (IRACP) norms (including provision on standard assets). The Impairment allowance under Ind
AS 109 made by the company exceeds the total provision required under IRACP {Including standard assets provisioning), as at March 31, 2023 and
aceordingly, no amount is required to be transferred to impairment reserve.
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Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Additional disclosures given in tarms of the Non Banking Financial Companies - Systemically Important Non Deposit Taking Company and Deposit Taking Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 {as amended)

45,
Disclosure on fiquidity risk as per RBI notification RBI2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD} CC. No.102/03.10.004/2019-20 dated November 04, 2019 on Liguidity Risk Management
Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies

This disclosure is not applicable for the year ended March 31, 2024,

This disclosurs is for year ended March 23

RBI vide circular dated Novermber 4, 2018 has made it mandatory for NBFCs to implement Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) with effect frem December 1, 2020. Accordingly, the Board and
ALCO has approved the Liquidity fisk managament policy including LOR poficy. The overall Liguidity risk management of TMFL Is under the guidance of the ALCC and within the overall
framewark of the Board approved poficies, The mandated regulatory threshold as per the transition plan is embeddad into the policy to ensure maintenance of adequate liquidity buffers,
LCR computations are reported to ALCO and the Board for oversight and periodical review. LCR seeks to ensure that TMFL has an adequate stock of unencumbered High-Quality Liquid
Assets (HQLA) that can be converted into cash promptly and immediately to meet its liquidity needs under a 30-day calendar liquidity stress scenario. As a strategy, TMFL has besn
maintaining nvestment in Govemment Securities and balance in current account with banks which has resulted in & high level of HQLA. TMFL follows the criteria laid down by the RBI for
caiculation of Migh-Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA), gross outfiows and inflows within the next 30-day period, HGLA predominantly comprises Investment in Government Securities and
Balance In current accounts with the Banks. TMPL is funded through Commercial papers, term loans from banks, long term bonds, and foreign currency borrowings. Al significant
cutflows and Inflows determined in accordance with RBI guidelines are included in the preseribed LOR computation. The Company assesses the impact on short term liquidity gaps
dynamically under various scenarios covering business projections under normal as well as varying market conditions. Periodical reports are placed before the Company's ALGC for
perusal and review. The LCR s calculated by dividing a TMFL's stock of HOLA by its total net cash outflows over a 30-day stress period,

REI has mandated s minimum LCR of 70% and TMFL's LCR stood at 137% for the quarter ended March 31, 2023,
Below is the quarterly summary of LCR values for financial year 2022- 2023,
This disclosure is not applicable for March 31, 2024

{%in lakhs}
Quarter ended December 31, Quarter ended September 38, Quiarter ended June
Quatter ended March 31, 2023 2022 2022 30, 2022
Particulars Total Total Total Total Total Total Total Total
Unweighted Weighted Unweighted Weighted Unweighted Weighted Unweighted Weighted
Value Value Value Value Value Value Value Value
High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA)
(I} Fixed Daposits {unencumarad} - -
{ii} investment in Gavernment Securities 1057 ,46.64 1057 ,46.64 798,83.05 798,63.08 802,44.78 802,44.78 861,06.38 B61,06.88
(i} Cash & Bank Balance 39,1141 39,11.41 73,34.31 73,34.31 90,54.57 90,84.57 122,21.48 122,21.48
(iv} investment in Listed Companies - - - - - - - -
1 Total HQLA 1086,58.05 10986,58.05 871,97.36 §71,97.36 992,60.35 992,24.35 983,28.34 983,28.34
Cash Cutfiow
2 Deposits (for deposit taking companies) - - - - - - - -
3 Unsecured whoiesale funding 967,36.32 1112,46.77 282,14.87 324,47.22 656,84.49 758,37.47 737.16.57 847,74.06
4 Secured wholesale funding 861,50.35 990,72.90 716,39.80 823,85.77 ©02,06.89 10387,37.92 970,95.96 1116,60.35
5 Agdditional requirements. of which
iy Outflows related to derivative exposures and
{ other collateral reguirements - ~ - - - - - -
COutflows related o foss of funding on debt
(i) products - - - - - - - -
{iif} Credit and liquidity facilities - - - - - - - -
& Other contractual funding obligations 849,30.39 976,69.95 762,58.46 876,98.37 764,10.34 878,71.89 915,54.67 1052 87.37
7 Qther contingent funding cbfigations 105,50.07 121,32.58 111,91.77 128,70.54 101,43.14 116,64.61 £9,52.69 79,85.569
8 Total Cash Dutfiow 2783,67.13 3201,22.20 1873,06.00 2154,01.90 2424,44.86 2788,11.59 2693,15.89 3057,17.87
Cash Inflow
9 SBecurad lending - - - - - " - -
10 Inflows from fully performing exposures 736,35.00 552,24,00 715,68.00 536,74.00 805.74.00 804,30.00 884,20.00 663,15.00
11 Cther cash inflows 6364,26.00 4773,27.00 6301,51.00 4726,13,00 5020.48.00 3765,35.00 4485,77.00 3349.32.00
12 Total Cash Inflow 7100,71,00 5325,51,00 7017,17.90 5262,87.00 5826,22.00 4368,66.00 5$349,97.00 4012,47.00
13 Total HQLA 1096,58.05 371,97.38 992,99.35 983,28.34
14 Total Net Cash Qutfiow B00,30.55 538,50.47 699,01.00 774,20.47
15 LIQUIDUTY COVERAGE RATIO (%) 137% 162% 142% 127%

Notes;
1. Total Unweighted Value {average) and Total weighted Value {average} are calculated taking simple averages of monthly ohservations for the respective quarter.
2. inflows from fully parforming exposures represents inflow from both secured and unsecurad loans and advances.



TMF Business Services Limited (FORMERLY KNOWM AS TATA MOTGRS FINANCE LIMITED) {CIN - Ua5200MH1589PLEDS0444)
Notes forming part of finantial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

46, The Company transfer standard loans through Direct Assignment route. Following table provide the detzils of Joan transferred during the year ended 31.03.2

This disclosure is not applicable for March 32, 2024

Particulars

For the year anded
March 31

2023

MNumber of transactions
Mumber of joans assigned

Aggregate principal outstanding amaunt of loans #ssigned *

Sale consideration

Weighted average residual maturity (months)
Weighted average holding period {months)

Retention of beneficial ecanomic interest

Tangible security caverage

Rating wige distribution of rated loans assigned
Number of instances (transaclions) of replading the transferred laans

Mumber of transferred loans replaced

" Indicates 106% principal outstanding amount as on loan assignment date
"Excluding desl undar co-lending arrangement of 2 113,03.00 Lakhs (Bank contribution is # 0. 43.00 Lakhs}

&7. Fraud

As required by Reserve Bark of India circutar No RBI2071-12/424 DNBES.PD.CC, No, 256 /03.10.042 / 2011-12 dated March 02, 2072 on
maonitoring of frauds, the Company has reported fraud amounting to Nil during year ended March 31, 2024 {during the year ended March 31, 2023
¥ 20.79 lakhs) through form FMR 1.

48. Unhedged forelgn currency exposure

There is ne unhedged foreign currancy exposure as on March 31, 2023, The Company in past had issued ECBs

Risk Management Policy,

43, Breach of Covenant

o

3012,48.00
2711,23.00

There is no breach of covanant for any borrowings undertaken by the Campany for year ended March 31,2624,
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